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SECTION ONE: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Preamble 

Corporate Governance is a set of relationships between a company's management, its board, its 
Committees, its shareholders, the regulators and other stakeholders. The primary goal of the 
Company’s corporate governance policy is to create and sustain increased value in the Company for 
the stakeholders. To achieve this goal, it is necessary amongst other things, to clearly set forth the 
principles of appropriate supervision and good management. The Company believes that it is 
important that these principles of governance are made transparent to all the stakeholders for 
safeguarding their rights and promoting their participation in the Company's corporate governance 
process. 

1.2 Objectives of Corporate Governance Framework 

The objective of Corporate Governance Framework is to promote the Company as a strong, viable and 
competitive entity by creating a strong control environment and an integrated risk management 
culture, which are fully aligned with governing Shari’ah principles. 

Corporate governance focuses on the conduct of, and relationships between the Board, management 
and the Company’s shareholders. It is designed to: 

a. Enhancing the role of the Company’s shareholders and facilitating the exercise of their rights;

b. Stating the competencies and responsibilities of the Board and the Executive Management;

c. Enhancing the role of the Board and the committees and developing their capabilities to
enhance the Company’s decision making mechanisms;

d. Enhance public reputation through increased transparency and accountability;

e. Permit entities to demonstrate the effective discharge of legal, shareholders and ethical
obligations;

f. Provide a mechanism of benchmarking of accountability;

g. Assist in detection and prevention of fraud, dishonesty and unethical behavior;

h. Provide strategic direction and approve corporate strategies;

i. Monitor management performance;

j. Monitor financial performance; and

k. Ensure that the Company has well defined policies, procedures and processes for risk
management and internal control.

The external aspect of corporate governance, on the other hand, concentrates on relationships 
between the Company and its stakeholders. Stakeholders are those individuals or institutions that 
have an interest in Nayifat; such an interest may arise through legislation or contract, or by way of 
social or geographic relationships. Stakeholders include investors, but also employees, creditors, 
suppliers, consumers, regulatory bodies and state agencies, and the local community in which Nayifat 
operates. 
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Nayifat Organization Chart 

The Company structure reflects the accountability of the Senior Management to the Board and the 
accountability of the Board to the shareholders and other Stakeholders, through relevant internal 
systems and policies. 

Each Senior department has a separate policy which clarifies its tasks and responsibilities. 

1.3 Access, Amendments and Approval of the Corporate Governance Manual 

a. The Manual is drafted in compliance with the laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
including the Saudi Central Bank (SAMA) Implementing Regulations of the law on
supervisions of Finance Companies (“SAMA Regulations”), guidelines issued by the Ministry
of Commerce and Investment (“MoCI”) the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by
the Board of the Capital Market Authority (“CMA” or “Authority”).

b. The Manual should be adopted by the Board and must be presented to the General
Assembly of Shareholders for review and approval. The Board Secretary will be the
custodian of the Manual.

c. The Board shall review the Manual at a minimum once every year to incorporate necessary
amendments and updates as the Board deems appropriate.

d. The Manual is to be read in conjunction with the Company's bylaws and the laws of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. In the event of any conflicts between the Manual and the
Company's bylaws and/or any applicable laws, the latter should prevail over the Manual.
Conflict of any of the provisions noted in the Manual with any existing/future Company
documents, if any, should be referred to the Board Secretary for necessary clarification.

e. The Manual will be available on the Company’s website for referral and guidance.
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SECTION TWO: THE BOARD OF NAYIFAT 

2.1 Introduction 

As per Chapter 2 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, without prejudice to the powers vested 
in the General Assembly, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Nayifat Finance Company (hereinafter 
also referred to as “Company” or “Nayifat”) shall assume all the necessary powers for the Company’s 
management. The ultimate responsibility for the Company rests with the Board even if it sets up 
committees or delegates some of its powers to a third party. The Board of Directors shall avoid issuing 
general or indefinite power of attorney. 
 
The Board has adopted this Board of Directors Manual which defines in greater detail the role, 
authorities, responsibilities and functioning of the Board. This Manual, together with the Company’s 
Bylaws, provides the authority and practices for governance of Nayifat. This manual has been prepared 
with due consideration for and without conflict with the Company’s Bylaws, SAMA Regulations, Saudi 
Arabian Companies Law and the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the CMA and leading 
international practices. 
 
The Board intends to review the various aspects of Corporate Governance Framework at least annually 
and shall make such changes as it deems necessary, wholly at its own discretion, and to the extent 
required under any applicable laws and regulations as well as to bring them in line with leading 
practices. 

2.2 Responsibility 

The primary responsibility of the Board is to provide effective oversight over the Company’s affairs for 
the benefit of its Shareholders and to balance the interests of its stakeholders, such as its customers, 
employees, suppliers and local communities. The Board is responsible for reviewing the development 
and execution of strategies, reviewing the selection, performance and compensation of the Chairman, 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and senior executives and ensuring transparency of communication and 
disclosure of financial and non-financial information, including establishing an effective audit process.  
 
Below are the main responsibilities of the Board of Directors: 

2.3 Defining Mission, Vision, Strategy and Objectives 

The Board will set the vision for Nayifat and will provide direction in addressing what the Company 
wants to do. This will be achieved by the Board: 

a. defining the vision and values of the Company and ensuring that these are realised and upheld; 

b. ensuring clear accountabilities and communication within the Company and monitoring the 
activities of the Company; 

c. creating a positive climate which fosters constructive challenge to assumptions about the 
business; and 

d. Determining the most appropriate capital structure of the Company.  

 

Once it has set the vision for the Company, the Board shall set the objectives which will define the 
stages towards realising the set vision. The Board shall then define the strategies, which will assist the 
Company in delivering on its objectives. In meeting those responsibilities, the Board shall: 

a. set the key strategic aims and determine the strategic objectives and outcomes required; 
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b. approve long term business plans, for both revenue and capital expenditures and financial 
strategy that support the achievement of the corporate strategy and plan; 

c. establish a framework for the approval and regular review of policies and plans to achieve 
business objectives; 

d. define the Company’s optimal financial and capital structure and approve major capital 
expenditure, acquisitions and divestitures; 

e. follow up with management to assess that all assets are managed efficiently and effectively, 
and that capital is properly utilized, so as to maintain long term viability and sustainability of 
the Company and its assets; and  

f. Periodically review and approve the Company’s organization and functional structure. 

g. Annual business plans, cash flow projections, forecasts and long term plans; 

h. Annual Budgets including capital, manpower and overhead budgets, along with variance 
analyses; 

i. Quarterly operating results of Nayifat as a whole and in terms of its operating divisions or 
business segments; 

j. Internal audit reports on cases of fraud or irregularities of a material nature; 

k. Management letter issued by the external auditors; 

l. Details of joint venture or collaboration agreements or agreements with distributors, agents, 
etc.; 

m. Promulgation or amendment of a law, rule or regulation, enforcement of an accounting 
standard and such other matters as may affect Nayifat; 

n. Status and implications of any law suit of material nature, filed by or against Nayifat; 

o. Any demand or prosecution notice received from regulatory authorities, which may be 
material; 

p. Default in payment of principal and/or profits, including penalties on late payments and other 
dues, to a creditor, bank or financial institution; 

q. Significant public or product liability claims likely to be made against Nayifat, including any 
adverse judgment or order made on the conduct of Nayifat or of another company that may 
bear negatively on Nayifat. 

 

The Assessment 

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 41 “The Assessment” - Still a guiding Article) 

a) The Board shall develop, based on the proposal of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the necessary mechanisms to annually assess the performance of the Board, its members and 
committees and the Executive Management using key performance indicators linked to the extent 
to which the strategic objectives of the Company have been achieved, the quality of the risk 
management and the efficiency of the internal control systems, among others, provided that 
weaknesses and strengths shall be identified and a solution shall be proposed for the same in the 
best interests of the Company. 

b) The procedures of performance assessment shall be in writing and clearly stated and disclosed to 
the Board members and parties concerned with the assessment. 

c) The performance assessment shall entail an assessment of the skills and experiences of the Board, 
identification of the weaknesses and strengths of the Board and shall attempt to resolve such 
weaknesses using the available methods, such as nominating competent professional staff able to 
improve the performance of the Board. The performance assessment shall also entail the 
assessment of the mechanisms of the Board’s activities in general. 

d) The individual assessment of the Board members shall take into account the extent of effective 
participation of the member and his/her commitment to performing his/her duties and 
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responsibilities, including attending the Board and its committees meetings and dedicating 
adequate time thereof. 

e) The Board shall carry out the necessary arrangements to obtain an assessment of its performance 
from a competent third party every three years.  

f) Non-Executive Directors shall carry out a periodic assessment of the performance of the chairman 
of the Board after getting the opinions of the Executive Directors, without the presence of the 
chairman of the Board in the discussion on this matter, provided that weaknesses and strengths 
shall be identified and a solution shall be proposed for the same in the best interests of the 
Company. 

2.4  Custodianship 

The Board shall accomplish its role as a custodian for the Company’s affairs and as a guardian of its 
assets by committing to the following:  

 

2.4.1 Responsibilities in relation to Risk Management 

 

a. In line with Chapter 5 Articles 70 to 72 of the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by 
CMA, the Board shall ensure that sufficient management resources are allocated to the 
identification, assessment and appropriate treatment of business risks which Nayifat is 
exposed to. These risks include any new risks arising as a result of a change in the Company’s 
operations such as expansions and new service offerings as well as changes in the regulatory 
environment. 

b. In line with Article 38 of Implementing Regulations of the Finance Companies Control Law 
issued by SAMA, the Board approves and annually updates the risk management policy of the 
finance company. 

c. The Board shall also ensure that adequate and transparent disclosures of Nayifat’s risks 
management are made in the Annual Reports.  

Responsibilities in relation to Risk Management, the Board shall also ensure that adequate 
and transparent disclosures of Nayifat’s risks management are made in the Annual Reports.  

 

2.4.2 Responsibilities in relation to Internal Controls Framework 
 

a. The Board periodically shall assess the adequacy of the Company’s Conflict of Interest and 
Business Conduct Guidelines. 

b. The Board shall review policies and procedures of the Company. 

c. The Board shall ensure the establishment of a corporate governance framework in line with 
CMA regulations and SAMA Implementing Regulations. 

d. The Board shall ensure the development of documented policies that include mechanisms for 
compensation, settle disputes with stakeholders, and establish relationships with clients and 
vendors and company’s social contributions. 

e. As per Article 22 (2) of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, the Board shall conduct an 
annual review of the efficiency of the Company’s internal control procedures. Although this 
will be carried out by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board, it will not absolve the Board 
of its responsibility in this regard. 
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2.4.3 Responsibilities in relation to Management Arrangements 

 

a. As per Article 22 of the Company’s Bylaws, the Board appoints a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
for the company, determining his authorities, powers, benefits and any other privileges, who 
is allowed to serve as the managing director and as a member.  

b. The Board shall ensure there are appropriate policies and systems in place to recruit, develop, 
retain and remunerate staff. 

c. The Board shall review succession plans and management development programs for CEO and 
senior management. 

 

2.4.4 Responsibilities in relation to Reporting 

 

a. The Board shall ensure the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting 
system and also shall ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to 
reporting the Company’s activities and results. 

b. As per Article 21 of the Company’s Bylaws, the board of directors' report to the ordinary 
general assembly includes a full statement about what the board members got in terms of 
salaries, dividends, attendance allowance, expenses and other benefits during the fiscal year. 

As per Article 48 of the Company’s Bylaws the board of directors prepares at the end of every 
year an inventory for The company’s assets and liabilities at that date, as well as preparing the 
company’s budget, loss and profit accounting and a report about the company’s activities and 
its financial position of the past year. This manual includes the method suggested by the board 
for distributing the dividends. 

 

2.4.5 Responsibilities in relation to Performance Monitoring 
 

In line with Article 22 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, the Board will act as a scrutiniser of 
management’s performance in accomplishing the Company’s objectives and meeting the approved 
performance targets. Specifically, the Board will: 

a. lay down the plans, policies, strategies and main objectives of the Company; supervising 
their implementation and reviewing them periodically and ensuring that the human and 
financial resources required to fulfill them are available including:  

i. setting a comprehensive strategy for the Company, key business plans and 
policies and mechanisms of the risk management and review and guide them  

ii. determining the most appropriate capital structure for the Company, its 
strategies and financial objectives, and approving all kinds of estimated 
budgets;  

iii. overseeing the main capital expenditures of the Company and the acquisition 
or disposal of assets;  

iv. setting performance indicators, and monitoring the implementation thereof 
and the overall performance of the Company;  

v. reviewing and approving the organizational and human resources structures 
of the Company on a periodic basis; and  

vi. ensuring that the financial and human resources required for achieving the 
objectives and main plans of the Company are available; 

b. set rules and procedures for internal control and generally overseeing them, including: 

i. Developing a written policy to remedy actual and potential conflicts of 
interest scenarios for each of the Board members, the Executive 
Management, and the shareholders. This includes misuse of the Company’s 
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assets and facilities and the mismanagement resulting from transactions with 
Related Parties; 

ii. ensuring the integrity of the financial and accounting rules, including rules 
relating to the preparation of financial reports; 

iii. ensuring the implementation of appropriate control procedures for risk 
assessment and management by generally forecasting the risks that the 
Company may encounter and creating an environment which is aware of the 
culture of risk management at the Company level and disclosing such risks 
transparently to the Stakeholders and parties related to the Company; and 

iv. Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control procedures on 
an annual basis. 

c. Set forth specific and explicit policies, standards and procedures for membership in the 
Board, without prejudice to the mandatory provisions of these Regulations, and 
implementing them following approval by the General Assembly. 

d. Develop a written policy that regulates the relationship with Stakeholders pursuant to the 
provisions of these Regulations. 

e. Set policies and procedures to ensure the Company’s compliance with the applicable laws 
and regulations and the Company’s obligation to disclose material information to 
shareholders and Stakeholders, and ensuring the compliance of the Executive 
Management with these policies and procedures. 

f. Supervising the management of the Company’s finances, its cash flows as well as its 
financial and credit relationships with third parties. 

g. providing recommendations to the Extraordinary General Assembly as to what it deems 
appropriate regarding the following: 

i. increasing or decreasing the share capital of the Company; and 

ii. Dissolving the Company before the end of its term as specified in its bylaws 
or deciding the continuity of the Company. 

h. providing recommendation to the Ordinary General Assembly as to what it deems 
appropriate regarding: 

i. Using the consensual reserve of the Company, if such has been formed by the 
Extraordinary General Assembly and has not been allocated to a specific 
purpose; 

ii. Forming additional financial allocations or reserves for the Company; and 

iii. The method of distributing the net profits of the Company. 

i. prepare the Company's interim and annual financial statements and approving them 
before publishing them 

j. Prepare the Board report and approve it before publication. 

k. ensure the accuracy and integrity of the data and information which must be disclosed 
pursuant to the applicable policies and systems in respect of disclosure and transparency; 

l. develop effective communication channels allowing shareholders to continuously and 
periodically review the various aspects of the Company's businesses as well as any 
material developments; 

m. Form specialized committees of the Board pursuant to resolutions that shall specify the 
term, powers and responsibilities of such committees as well as the manner used by the 
Board to monitor such committees. Such resolutions shall also specify the names of the 
members and their duties, rights and obligations and shall evaluate the performance and 
activities of these committees and their members; 

n. Set the values and standards that govern the work at the Company. 
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o. Regularly review and monitor performance in relation to plans, budgets, controls and 
decisions, and seek explanations for any major deviations. 

p. Obtain and consider performance information in relation to stakeholder feedback and 
benchmark against comparable organizations and activities. 

q. Obtain assurance that the business affairs are conducted lawfully and in accordance with 
generally accepted and specific standards of reporting, performance and probity. 

r. Ensure the soundness of financial and accounting systems, including financial reporting 
systems and that the Company complies with all relevant regulatory requirements. 

s. Ensure the Audit Committee has established procedures for monitoring internal auditing, 
accounting practices, internal accounting controls and reporting, and conduct executive 
sessions with auditors without the presence of management. 

 

Distribution of Competencies and Duties  

 

The organisational structure of the Company shall specify the competencies and distribute the 
duties between the Board and the Executive Management in accordance with the best practices 
in Corporate Governance, and to improve the efficiency of the Company's decision making and to 
achieve a balance of powers and authorities across the Board and the Executive Management, 
and to achieve this, the Board shall:  

1) Approve and develop internal policies in respect of the Company’s business, including specifying 
the duties, competencies and responsibilities assigned to the various organisational levels;  

2) approving a written and detailed policy that identifies the powers delegated to the Executive 
Management, a matrix stating these powers, means of implementation and the period of 
delegation \ The Board may request the Executive Management to submit periodic reports in 
respect of its exercise of such delegated powers; and  

3) Identifying the matters on which the Board reserves the power to decide. 

 

2.4.6 Representation and Commitment 
 

a. As per Nayifat’s Bylaws, the board of directors’ authorities includes to represent the company 
in its relationships with others, with all Governmental sector, Private sector, Shari’a courts, 
Judicial bodies, Board of Grievance, Capital Market Authority, Office of Labor, the higher and 
primary committees, Commercial Paper Committees, all judicial committees, Arbitrary Panels, 
Civil Rights Organizations, Police Departments, Chamber of Commerce and Industry, private 
agencies, different types of companies and corporation inside the Kingdom and abroad. 

b. The members of the Board commit to giving their time and commitment to attend meetings 
and keeping themselves updated as to relevant developments in the Company’s business, 
market, regulatory and legal arena so as to identify potential road-blocks to the Company 
achieving its objectives. In all their actions, the members of the Board commit to monitoring 
and safeguarding the Company’s reputation and continuously working towards enhancing it. 

 

2.4.7 Protecting Shareholder Rights 

a. General Rights 

a. Fair Treatment of Shareholders 

i. The Board shall be committed to shareholders' rights protection to ensure 
fairness and equality among them. 
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ii. The Board and the Executive Management of the Company shall be 
committed not to discriminate among shareholders who own the same class 
of shares nor prevent them from accessing any of their rights. 

iii. The Company will specify in its internal policies the procedures that are 
necessary to guarantee that all shareholders exercise their rights. 

b. Rights related to shares 

All rights related to shares shall be guaranteed to the shareholder, and particularly 
the following: 

i. to develop effective communication channels to allow shareholders to 
continuously and periodically review the various aspects of the Company's 
businesses as well as any material developments; 

ii. to obtain his/her portion of the net profits which are to be distributed in cash 
or through the issuance of shares; 

iii. to obtain his/her share of the Company’s assets upon liquidation; 

iv. to attend the General or Special Shareholders Assemblies, take part in their 
deliberations and vote on their decisions; 

v. to dispose of his/her shares in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Law, the Capital Market Law and their implementing regulations; 

vi. to enquire and request viewing the books and documents of the Company, 
including the data and information related to the activities of the Company 
and its operational and investment strategy without prejudice to the interests 
of the Company or breach of the Companies Law and the Capital Market Law 
and their implementing regulations; 

vii. to monitor the performance of the Company and the activities of the Board; 

viii. to hold Board members accountable, to file liability lawsuits against them and 
appeal for nullification of the resolutions of the General and Special 
Shareholders Assemblies in accordance with the conditions and restrictions 
provided in the Companies Law and the bylaws of the Company; 

ix. To exercise preemptive rights to subscribe for new shares issued in exchange 
for cash unless otherwise specified in the Company’s bylaws or when the 
Extraordinary General Assembly suspends the pre-emptive rights. 

x. to record his/her name in the Company’s shareholders register; 

xi. to request to view a copy of the Company’s bylaws unless the Company 
publishes them on its website; and 

xii. To nominate and elect the Board members. 

c. Shareholder access to information 

i. The Board shall make available to the shareholder complete, clear, accurate 
and non-misleading information to enable him/her to properly exercise 
his/her rights. Such information shall be provided at the proper times and 
shall be updated regularly. 

ii. The method used to provide information to the shareholders shall be clear 
and detailed and includes a list of the Company's information that the 
shareholders may obtain. This information is made available to all 
shareholders of the same class. 

iii. The Company shall utilize the most effective methods in communicating with 
shareholders and does not discriminate among shareholders in respect of 
providing information. 

d. Communicating with Shareholders 
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i. The Board shall ensure that communication between the Company and the 
shareholders is based on the common understanding of the strategic 
objectives and interests of the Company. 

ii. The chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer shall inform the 
remaining Board members of the opinions of the shareholders and discusses 
these opinions with them. 

iii. No shareholder may intervene in the operations of the Board or the work of 
the Executive Management of the Company unless he/she is a member of its 
Board or its management team; or unless his/her intervention is through the 
Ordinary General Assembly according to its powers or within the limits and 
situations permitted by the Board. 

b. In discharging its oversight role, the Board is empowered to investigate any matter, brought 
to its attention with full access to all books, records, facilities and personnel of the Company 
and the power to retain outside counsel, auditors or consultants, or incur other expenses for 
this purpose, which the Company shall pay.  

c. The Board may require any officer or employee of the Company, the Company’s outside legal 
counsel, and the Company’s external auditors to meet with the Board or any committee of 
the Board and such meetings will be conducted in the presence of the CEO, unless there is a 
conflict of interest with him.  

d. The Board will ensure that proper mechanisms are in place to establish good relationships 
with clients and vendors and to maintain confidentiality of their information. 

2.5 Selection & Composition of Senior Positions 

2.5.1 Criteria for Selection to the Board of Directors & Senior Managers 

a. The Board shall seek members from diverse professional backgrounds who combine a 
broad range of experience and expertise with a reputation for integrity. 

b. In line with Article 17 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations and Article 17 of 
Nayifat’s Bylaws, the General Assembly shall appoint the members of the Board of 
Directors for duration of 3 years and as an exception, the shareholders has appointed the 
first board of directors for (5) five years. 

c. In line with Articles 11 and 12of Implementing Regulations of the Law of Finance 
Companies Control and in line with Requirements for Appointments to Senior Positions 
by SAMA, each board member or senior manager’s appointment is conditional on 
satisfying professional eligibility requirements and obtaining approval from SAMA. 

d. Further the Board shall ensure that the accumulative voting technique is followed for 
selection of Board members at the Shareholders’ meeting in line with Article 8 of the CMA 
Corporate Governance Regulations. 

e. The Company shall notify the Authority of the names of the Board members and 
description of their memberships within five business days from the commencement date 
of the Board term or from the date of their appointment, whichever is shorter, as well as 
any changes that may affect their membership within five business days from the 
occurrence of such change. 

f. Nayifat to 

2.5.2 Independent and Non-Executive Directors 

The Board will at all times be comprised of a majority of Non-Executive Directors, i.e., Directors who 
are independent of management and of all entities having a material business relationship with 
Nayifat.  
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2.6 Term for Directorship and Retirement from the Board 

a. In accordance with the Saudi Companies Law and Article 17 of CMA Corporate 
Governance Regulations, the Ordinary General Assembly shall appoint the Directors for 
the term specified in the Company bylaws, which shall not exceed three years. Article 
17 of Nayifat’s Bylaws concurs with this term for directorship.  

b. Article 18 of Nayifat’s Bylaws states that membership of the board of directors shall 
expire upon the end of the appointment duration or by the abstention of the member 
from attending the sessions of the board or by his absence for more than three 
consecutive sessions without acceptable excuse accepted by the board of directors or 
by resignation. In accordance with Article 68 of the Companies Law, the Ordinary 
General Assembly may, at any time, remove all or any of the Directors even if the 
Company’s bylaws provide otherwise, without prejudice to the right of a removed 
Director to hold the Company liable if the removal is made without acceptable 
justification or at an improper time. 

c. On termination of membership of a Board member in any of the ways of termination, 
the Company shall promptly notify SAMA and shall specify the reasons for such 
termination. 

 

Resignation 

a. Resignation of a Director will take effect from the time it is communicated to the Board, 
or any other agreed time. 

b. Employees serving as directors are expected to offer their resignation at the time they 
retire or resign from the Company. 

 

Other Requirements for Board Membership 

Each Director must devote the time and attention necessary to fulfill his obligations as a 
Director. Key obligations include appropriate attendance at Board meetings and an adequate 
review of preparatory material. Directors are also expected to attend the General Meetings of 
the Shareholders. 

 

Minority Shareholders 

 Minority Shareholders as a class are facilitated to contest election of Directors by proxy 
 solicitation. To this end, Nayifat shall comply with all legal obligations in relation to minority 
 Shareholder rights . 

2.7  Separation of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

a. The separation of the roles of the CEO and Chairman of the Board is a method of 
ensuring an appropriate balance of power, increasing accountability and increasing the 
capacity of the Board for independent decision making and therefore balancing 
between authority, functions and their control.  

b. In line with this requirement, the Chairman of the Board of Nayifat will not assume the 
role of an Executive of the Company. 

The Chairman will be selected by the vote of the majority of the Directors. 
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2.8  Role of the Chairman 

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board and for ensuring that it successfully 
discharges its overall responsibility for the Company as a whole. According to the Article 22 of Nayifat 
Bylaws the functions and responsibilities of the Chairman shall be to preside and head Board of 
Directors meeting and General Assembly meeting, to call for Board of Directors’ meetings and General 
Assembly meetings, to have the casting vote in case of tie in Boards of Directors voting, to represent 
the company in its relationships with others; with all governmental sector, private sector, Shari’a 
courts, Judicial bodies, Board of Grievance and all judicial committees inside the Kingdom and abroad. 
In addition, the Chairman is expected to fulfill the following responsibilities:  

 

a. Direct the Board discussions to effectively use time to address the critical issues facing the 
Company. 

b. Ensure that the Board provides guidance in setting up the vision, aims, strategies and policies of 
the Company and continually monitors the steps taken and success in achieving these strategies. 

c. Ensure that Directors are enabled and encouraged to play their role in the meetings and have 
adequate opportunities to express their views. 

d. Ensure that Directors are provided with sufficient and timely information prior to the meeting and 
to ensure that minutes properly reflect decisions made at the meetings. 

e. ensure that the Board members obtain complete, clear, accurate and non-misleading information 
in due course; 

f. ensure that the Board effectively discusses all fundamental issues in due course; 

g. encourage the Board members to effectively perform their duties in order to achieve the interests 
of the Company; 

h. ensure that there are actual communication channels with shareholders and conveying their 
opinions to the Board; 

i. encourage constructive relationships and effective participation between the Board and the 
Executive Management on the one hand, and the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors on the other hand, and creating a culture that encourages constructive criticism; 

j. prepare agendas of the Board meetings, taking into consideration any matters raised by Board 
members or the external auditor and consult with the Board members and the Chief Executive 
Officer upon preparing the Board's agenda; and 

k. Convene periodic meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the presence of any 
executive officers of the Company. 

l. notify the Ordinary General Assembly while convening of the businesses and contracts in which 
any Board member has direct or indirect interest, the notification shall include the information 
provided by the member to the Board as per paragraph 14 of Article 30 of CMA Corporate 
Governance Regulations; this notification shall be accompanied by a special report of the 
Company's external auditor. 

m. Uphold the Corporate Governance Framework.  

 

The Chairman also has an important responsibility to establish a healthy working relationship between 
the Board and the CEO. He will be the major point of contact between the Board and the CEO and 
shall be kept fully informed of key issues by the CEO on all matters, which may be of interest to the 
Board. The Board, on the basis of the competence, achievements and record as a leader, shall select 
the Chairman.  
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If the chairman is unable to assume his responsibilities and roles due to any reasons attributed to force 
majeure, the vice chairman shall act temporarily on behalf of him.  

The Board shall conduct an annual review of the Chairman’s performance to ensure that the Chairman 
is providing the best leadership for the Company in the long and short term. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will assist the Board to establish criteria for evaluation 
of the Chairman’s performance and such criteria shall be communicated to the Chairman. 

 

The Board’s Secretary 

 

a. Based on the CEO’s recommendations and in line with the Article 22 of Nayifat Bylaws the 
Board of Directors shall appoint a secretary to do the secretarial functions of the board, and 
determine his remuneration and duration. 

b. The Secretary shall be responsible of all secretarial work of the Board, arrange for the Board’s 
meetings, prepare the meeting’s agenda and presentation and forward them to the Board’s 
members, maintain all Board’s documents including memos, minutes of meetings, resolutions 
and correspondences and shall communicate the Board’s resolutions and directions to the 
concerned parties in the Company.  

c. The Secretary shall confirm the quorum at the beginning of each meeting and shall provide 
the Chairman with the absent members names and reasons for their absence, if provided.  

d. Without prejudice to the above, the Secretary’s power shall include 
 

a. documenting the Board meetings and preparing minutes therefore, which shall 
include the discussions and deliberations carried during such meetings, as well as the 
place, date, times on which such meetings commenced and concluded; and recording 
the decisions of the Board and voting results and retaining them in a special and 
organized register, and including the names of the attendees and any reservations 
they expressed (if any),. Such minutes shall be signed by all of the attending members;  

b. retaining the reports submitted to the Board and the reports prepared by it;  

c. providing the Board members with the agenda of the Board meeting and related 
worksheets, documents and information and any additional information, related to 
the topics included in the agenda items, requested by any Board member;  

d. ensuring that the Board members comply with the procedures approved by the 
Board;  

e. notifying the Board members of the dates of the Board’s meetings within sufficient 
time prior to the date specified for the meeting;  

f. presenting the draft minutes to the Board members to provide their opinions on them 
before signing the same;  

g. ensuring that the Board members receive, fully and promptly, a copy the minutes of 
the Board’s meetings as well as the information and documents related to the 
Company;  

h. coordinating among the Board members;  

i. regulating the disclosure register of the Board and Executive Management as per 
Article 92 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations; and  

j. Providing assistance and advice to the Board members.  
 

e. The Secretary of the Board may not be dismissed except pursuant to a decision of the Board.  
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f. The Board must specify the conditions that the secretary must meet, provided that they 
include at least one of the following: 

a. he/she holds a bachelor degree in law, finance, accounting or administration or their 
equivalent, and has relevant practical experience of not less than three years; or 

b. He/she has relevant practical experience of not less than five years. 

2.9 Director Orientation and Continuing Education 

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 39 “Training” - Still a guiding Article) 

 

a. According to Article 39 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations , the Board shall provide an 
orientation program for new Directors which will include presentations by executive 
management on the Company’s strategic plans, its significant financial, accounting and risk 
management issues, its legal affairs, its compliance programs, its operations, its Conflict of 
Interest and Business Conduct Guidelines, its management structure, its key policies, practices, 
executive officers and its internal and external auditors. In addition, each incoming Director 
will be provided with copies of Nayifat’s Bylaws, the executive summary of the corporate plan 
and other appropriate information. 

2.10  Board Meetings Organization and Minutes 

a. The Chairman will determine the degree of formality required at each meeting while 
maintaining the decorum of such meetings. In any event the Chairman will ensure that all 
members are heard and will take care that the issues are properly debated and concluded 
with a reasonably formal resolution recording the conclusions reached. 

b. The Board has delegated day-to-day operational and strategic management of the Company 
to the CEO and through to the senior management team. However, the Board retains the 
powers of oversight relating to general strategic and policy related issues, the Company’s 
capital structure and declaration of dividends. It is not necessary for every decision taken by 
the Directors to be made at a Board meeting. Meeting by tele-conference or video-conference 
or any other form of technology that the Directors have consented to, are all acceptable.  

c. Annual Reports should contain a statement on the number of Board meetings held during the 
reporting period at which a Director could attend, and the number of meetings which the 
Director did in fact attend. Absence from Board meeting(s), will not excuse Directors from 
their duties to the Company in relation to the matters considered and decided. 

d. As per Article 24 of Nayifat Bylaws the board of directors convenes by a call from its chairman, 
and the call shall be authenticated in the way that Board see it is convenient. The chairman of 
the board shall call to a meeting upon request of two members of the board. 

e. At the beginning of each fiscal year of the Company, the Board shall put a schedule for its 
meetings during the year. The next Board meeting shall be confirmed at the end of each 
Board’s meeting.  

f. The Board shall ensure that members are actively involved with the CEO in setting the agendas 
for the full Board meetings. A designated Director or Directors shall work with the CEO to 
create Board agendas (incorporating other Board members’ input as provided) and ensure 
that all the relevant material is provided in a timely manner prior to each meeting. 

g. The agenda of the Board meeting may not be changed during that meeting, unless all 
members of the Board are present at that meeting and give their consent to changing the 
agenda items. 

h. The agenda may also be changed in a situation where it becomes necessary for the Board to 
undertake certain activities in order to protect Nayifat from damage, or in the event of a 
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resolution, the subject of a possible existence of conflict of interests between Board members 
and Nayifat. 

i. Information and data that is important to the Board’s understanding of the business shall be 
distributed in writing to the Board 7 days in advance of the Board meetings. Such information 
will be forwarded by the Secretary to the Board after the approval of the Chairman. As a 
general rule, presentation on specific subjects shall be sent to the Board members 7 days 
before the meeting so that Board meeting time may be conserved and discussion time focused 
on questions that the Board may have about the subject. On those occasions where the 
subject matter is too sensitive to put on paper, the presentation shall be discussed at the 
meeting. 

j. The Board shall be given sufficient information to exercise fully its governance functions. This 
information comes from a variety of sources, including management reports, personal 
observation, a comparison of performance to plans, articles in various business publications, 
etc.  

k. Directors are expected to attend the Company’s General Meeting, Board meetings and 
meetings of committees and subcommittees on which they serve. 

l. The Board shall convene no less than four meetings per year, and no less than one meeting 
every three months. 

m. The Board shall meet upon the invitation of its chairman or upon a request from two of its 
members. The invitation to the meeting shall be sent to each of the Board members no less 
than five days prior to the date of the meeting accompanied by its agenda and the necessary 
documents and information, unless circumstance require convening an emergency meeting, 
the invitation accompanied with the agenda and necessary documents and information may 
be sent within a period less than the five days. 

n. The meeting shall not be valid unless attended by half of the Board members, provided that 
the number of attendees shall not be less than three, unless the Company's bylaws stated 
greater percentage or number. 
 

Remarks of the Board Members  
 

a. If any member of the Board has any remarks in respect of the performance of the Company 
or any of the matters presented and which was not resolved in the Board meeting, such 
remarks shall be recorded and the procedures taken or to be taken by the Board in connection 
therewith must be set forth in the minutes of the Board meeting.  

b. If a member of the Board expresses an opinion differs from the Board resolution, such opinion 
must be recorded in detail in the minutes of the Board meeting.  
 

Organizing the Attendance of the Board Meetings 
 
a) The Attendance of Board meetings, and dealing with cases of irregular attendance by 
members of such meetings shall be organized. 
 
b) An Independent Director of the Board shall make every effort to attend all meetings in 
which important and material decisions affecting the position of the Company are made. 
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The Agenda of Board Meetings 

 

a) The Board shall approve the agenda once the Board meeting is convened. Should any member of 

the Board raise any objection in respect of such agenda, such objection shall be recorded in the 

minutes of the meeting. 

b) Each member of the Board is entitled to propose additional items to the agenda. 

 

Minutes of Meetings 

 In accordance with of Saudi Companies Law and Article 26 of Nayifat Bylaws, deliberations 
and resolutions of the Board will be recorded in minutes. Such minutes shall be entered in 
a special register, which shall be signed by the Chairman of the Board and the Secretary.  

 The Board meetings shall be recorded in the sequentially numbered minutes of meeting, 
which shall reflect the course of proceedings during the sittings and shall contain the names 
of the persons present at the meeting, agenda of the meeting, the exact words of the 
adopted resolutions and issues, opinions, number of votes given to particular resolutions 
and dissenting opinions. 

 The minutes of the meeting of the Board, which was conducted by means of distant 
communications, shall be signed by all members of the Board taking part in this meeting. 
The minutes should also mention that the member of the Board, who has not participated 
in an adoption of resolution in that manner, had an opportunity to participate in an adoption 
of resolutions. 

 Secret voting may be allowed during Board of Directors meetings, as proposed by a member 
and upon approval of Chairman, provided that it shall be documented in Board of Directors 
meeting minutes.  

 

Regulation of Conduct and Expectations from Directors 

 

The Board has adopted Regulations of Conduct for Directors to promote ethical and responsible 
decision making by the Directors. The Regulation of Conduct embraces the values of honesty, integrity, 
excellence, accountability and independence as per Article 20 of CMA Corporate Governance 
Regulations.  
The Directors have adopted the following Regulation of Conduct in respect of the Directors’ behavior 
and in this regards, they shall: 

 Act honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. 

 Accept collective responsibility for the decisions of the Board.  

 Come to meetings on time and demonstrate assertive communication skills in both speaking 
and listening.  

 Not engage in conduct likely to bring the Company into disrepute. 

 Maintain sufficient detailed knowledge of the business and performance to make informed 
decisions. 

 The Board members will carry out their responsibilities to the exclusion of any personal 
advantage. 

 Board members should maintain the confidentiality of non-public information about Nayifat 
or its activities or operations to which they have access by virtue of their functions as Board 
members. If Board members are required to disclose confidential Nayifat information by law, 
they should inform the Chairman and the CEO of any such requirement at the earliest possible 
opportunity.  
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2.11 Disclosure regarding Corporate Governance 

The disclosure - a “Statement of Corporate Governance Practice” – shall be made in the Company’s 

Board of Directors report in addition to the above mentioned disclosures. Such disclosure shall be 

relatively brief but shall address at least the following points: 

 

a. The composition of the Board and classification of each of its members as an Executive 
Director, a Non-Executive Director or an Independent Director. 

b. Description of Board Committees, their functions, names of their members and chairs 
of the committees as well as the number of meetings of the committees. Detailed 
remunerations and compensations paid for Board members (Directors) and five 
senior executives. 

c. Any punishment, penalties or measures taken against Nayifat by any regulatory, 
supervisory or judicial authority. 

d. Names of any joint stock company or companies in which the Company Board of 
Directors’ member acts as a member of its Board of Directors. 

e. Results of the annual audit on the effectiveness of the internal control procedures of 
the company. 

f. The provisions of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, which the Company has 
not implemented, the reasons for not doing so and the likely time period for it to 
implement those provisions. 

g. Significant plans and decisions, such as corporate restructuring, business expansion 
and discontinuance of operations, shall be outlined along with future prospects of the 
Company and any risks facing the Company.  

h. A description of the principal activities of the Company. If two or more activities are 
described, a statement must be included giving for each activity the turnover and 
contribution to trading results attributable to the Company. 

i. A summary, in the form of a table or a chart, of the assets and liabilities of Nayifat and 
of Nayifat’s business results for the last five financial years or from incorporation, 
whichever is shorter. 

j. A geographical analysis of the Nayifat’s consolidated turnover and of the consolidated 
turnover of its subsidiaries (if any) outside the Kingdom.  

k. An explanation for any material differences between the operating results of the year 
and the operating results of the previous year or any announced forecast made by the 
Company. 

l. An explanation for any departure from the accounting standards issued by SOCPA & 
IFRS. 

m. The name of every subsidiary, its main business, its principal country of operation and 
its country of incorporation.  

n. The particulars of the issued shares and debt instruments of every subsidiary. 

o. A description of Nayifat’s dividend policy.  

p. A description of any interest, options, and subscription rights of the Nayifat’s 
Directors, senior executives and their spouses and minor children in the shares or debt 
instruments of Nayifat or any of its subsidiaries, together with any change to such 
interest and rights during the last financial year. 

q. Information relating to any borrowings of the Company (whether repayable on 
demand or otherwise), and a statement of the aggregate indebtedness of Nayifat and 
its group together with any amounts paid by the Nayifat as a repayment of loans 
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during the year. In case there are no loans outstanding for Nayifat, it must provide an 
appropriate statement.  

r. A description of the classes and numbers of any convertible debt instruments, 
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by Nayifat during the financial 
year, together with the consideration received by Nayifat. 

s. A description of any conversion or subscription rights under any convertible debt 
instruments, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by Nayifat. The 
number of meetings of the Board of Directors held during the last financial year and 
the attendance record of each meeting. 

t. Information relating to any contract to which Nayifat is party and in which a Director 
of Nayifat, the CEO, the CFO or any associate is or was materially interested, or if there 
are no such contracts, Nayifat must submit an appropriate statement. A description 
of any arrangements or agreement under which a Director or a senior executive of 
Nayifat has waived any emolument or compensation.  

u. A description of any arrangements or agreement under which a Shareholder of 
Nayifat has waived any rights to dividends. A statement of the amount of any 
outstanding statutory payment on account of any Zakat, taxes, duties or other charges 
with a brief description and the reasons thereof. A statement as to the value of any 
investments made or any other reserves set up for the benefit of the employees of 
Nayifat;  

v. Statements that:  

i. proper books of account have been maintained;  

ii. the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented; and  

iii. there are no significant doubts concerning Nayifat’s ability to continue as a 
going concern;  

w. If any of the statements above cannot be made, the report must contain a statement 
clarifying the reasons thereof;  

x. If the external auditors’ report on the relevant annual accounts is qualified, and the 
Authority requires additional information, the Directors report must include such 
information as has been provided to the Authority; and  

y. If the Board recommends that the external auditors should be changed before the 
elapse of three consecutive financial years, the report must contain a statement to 
that effect and the reasons for such recommendation. 

z. In line with CMA Corporate Governance Regulations Paragraph (d) of Article 17, the 
Company shall notify the CMA of the names of the Board members and description of 
their memberships as well as any changes in their memberships. 

In line CMA Corporate Governance Regulations Paragraph (b) of Article 19, upon the 
termination of the membership of a Board member, the Company shall promptly 
notify the Authority and the Exchange and shall specify the reasons for such 
termination. 

 

Board of Directors Report 

 

In accordance with the Companies Law, the Board shall, at least sixty days prior to the date set for the 
annual general meeting, prepare for every financial year of the Company, a balance sheet, a profit and 
loss statement, and a report on the Company’s operations and financial position and on the method 
which it proposes for the distribution of net profit. The said document shall be signed by the Chairman 
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of the Board, and copies thereof shall be placed at the disposal of Shareholders at the head office of 
the Company at least twenty-five days prior to the date set for such general meeting. 

 

Other Board Responsibilities 

 

Audit Committee 

 
The General Assembly is fully responsible for the Audit Committee's business in pursuance of the 
regulations and instructions under which the Company operates. The Board is also responsible for 
ensuring the efficiency and effectiveness for the control and financial reports and for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company. The Board shall: 

 provide all that is required from them in order to facilitate the work of the Audit 
Committee, internal audit department and compliance control department; 
Ensure that the Company has in place an appropriate organizational structure, internal 
policies, and regulations that must be periodically reviewed, and the system and 
methodology for reporting within the Company on the different Issues that fall within the 
remit of the Audit Committee; 

 formulate the responsibilities and functions of the Audit Committee and incorporate them 
in the minutes of the Board meetings including the authority to investigate any activity 
within its terms of reference and have access to any info; 

 follow up the Audit Committee's work; 
 ensure that it performs its assigned responsibilities and duties; 
 discuss relevant issues with the Audit Committee, including the reports and findings of 

the Audit Committee; 

 ensure that the Audit Committee keeps up-to-date with developments in accounting 
standards; and 

 Ensure that the Audit Committee plays an oversight and supervisory role and does not 
exercise executive functions or make administrative decisions. 

 

Risk Management 

 

The Company will implement Risk Management Policy approved by the Board, which details the 

Company's risk management framework and provides oversight on senior management's activities in 

the managing of operational, investment, legal, reputation and other risks of the Company. 

 

Statutory Financial Statements 

 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Report and the Company’s financial 

statements. The Board is required to prepare and sign financial statements for Nayifat in accordance 

with regulatory requirements by the various regulators in KSA i.e. CMA, SAMA and MoCI. 

 

Internal Audit 

The Board, through its Audit Committee will ensure that the Company’s internal audit function is able 

to provide objective and independent advice to the Company’s senior management as well as to the 

Board itself. This advice will seek covering the Company's management of business risk, validation of 

the design and operation of its controls, and adherence to policies and procedures and codes of 

conduct. 
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Internal Control Framework 

 

The Company should operate a system of internal control that is effective in ensuring compliance with 

laws and regulations and internal policies and procedures. 

 

External Audit 

 

 Boards of directors and audit committees are facing ever increasing expectation that they 

should assume more responsibility for overseeing the financial reporting process. Heightened 

regulatory scrutiny is placing greater pressure on all levels of corporate management. Given 

these challenges, it’s more important than ever for the Company’s Board to engage highly 

trusted external auditors. 

 The Board of Directors should appoint an audit firms as its External Auditors to the General 

Assembly, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. At least one of the proposed audit 

firms should be a leading international audit firm but both the firms should be licensed to 

practice in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. A minimum of four such firms will be invited to act as 

the Company’s External Auditors, and one of the firms will be selected to act as the Company’s 

External Auditors. 

 

Ethical Conduct 

 

 The Company seeks to set forth the principles associated with its policy regarding a code of 

ethics for members of the Board of Directors and all employees and further to develop 

position statements in support of a culture of ethical conduct within the Company. 

 It is the policy of the Board of Directors and all employees to demonstrate the highest level of 

ethical behavior for them and others associated with the Company pursuant to its Code of 

Ethics and Business Conduct. 

 

2.12 Social Responsibility Policy 

Nayifat Corporate Social Responsibility policy intends to support economic development that 

positively impacts the society. Encourage company's action towards social responsibility programs for 

supporting country's development and needy people.  

 

 Saudization Program  

Nayifat continuously provides career opportunities for young nationals and support 

Saudization program. Saudization is one of the most important issues affecting the labor 

market; it is directly linked to economic growth and sustainable development. In addition, 

Nayifat provides career opportunities for female employees, the rate of female employees 

growing on yearly basis. HR will maintain saudizaton ratio as per SAMA policy.  

 

 Waving outstanding loan for Deceased/Disabled Customers  

This program is designed to support the bereaved family members of deceased/disabled 

customer's by waiving outstanding finance. A committee (Corporate Social Responsible 

Committee) has been set up to review the cases of deceased/disabled customers to take 

appropriate decision on waving outstanding finance.  
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 Waving outstanding loan for the customers who falls under legal proceedings.  

This program is intended to support customer who falls under legal proceedings. Corporate 

Social Responsible Committee will review the cases of customer who falls under legal 

proceedings.  

 

 Guidelines on processing deceased and disabled cases  

This process aims describing the guiding steps while processing deceased and disabled cases.  

Representative (Relative/Heir/Attorney-in-Fact) should submit documentary requirements 

for deceased/disabled customers.  

The required documents may vary case by case however minimum three documents should 

be submitted out five documents given below based on the merits of the cases.  

a. Death certificate I Disabled certificate showing disability percentage.  

b. Medical report stating the cause of death/disabled.  

c. Client ID  

d. Legal heirs' letter  

e. Police report in case of accident causing death/disabled.  

Original documents with photocopies should be submitted to the Branch.  

Customer service staff should verify and stamp photocopies with "Verified against Original" 

and signs along with the representative.  

Collection Department collects information about the customers due and unpaid amounts and 

necessary information and reporting to the committee members to seek appropriate decision.  

 

 Guidelines on processing customers who falls under legal proceedings  

Customer falls under legal proceedings should submit supporting documents to prove subject 

cases. In case customer falls under insolvency court order should be produced. Original 

documents with photocopies should be submitted to the Branch. Customer service staff 

should verify and stamp photocopies with "Verified against Original" and signs along with the 

representative. Initial review will be conducted by Collection Department, upon completion 

subject cases will be forwarded to CSR Committee. Appropriate decision will be taken by CSR 

committee upon completion of the final review.  
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SECTION THREE: NAYIFAT BOARD COMMITTEES 

3.1 Asset and Liability Committee 

 The Board of Directors in its attempt to adopt a Corporate Governance Framework and in order 

to ensure it remains aligned with leading practices in terms of corporate governance, has prepared 

this Charter.  

 This Charter governs the operations of the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO ‘or the 

‘Committee’) and details the scope of the Committee’s responsibilities and how it carries out those 

responsibilities, including its structure, procedures… etc.  

 The Committee shall review this Charter annually and shall recommend to the Board changes to 

the extent required under any applicable regulations, as well as to bring it into line with leading 

practices. 

 The Board shall annually evaluate the Committee's performance and make recommendations to 

enhance the performance or change the members of the Committee.  

 The Committee is tasked with overseeing the implementation of an effective process for managing 

the Company’s profit rate, liquidity, and similar market risks relating to the balance sheet and 

associated activities, including the adoption from time to time of policies, risk limits and capital 

levels. 

 The Committee shall have the right to exercise all authorities delegated by the Board of Directors. 

The exercise of such authorities by the Committee shall not prejudice the authority reserved for 

the full Board.  

 The Committee shall report to and manage the communications with the Board of Directors. 

 The Committee shall not have the right to amend any decisions or resolutions of the Board. 

 

3.1.1 Asset & Liability Committee Organization and Meetings 

 

Composition 

 

 The Board of Directors shall appoint the Committee members and Chairman. Members of the 

Committee can be removed by the Board. 

 In the absence of the Committee Chairman, the remaining present members shall elect one 

amongst themselves to chair the meeting.  

 

The Chairman 

 

 The Chairman of the Committee (the Chairman) shall determine the agenda, the frequency 

and length of meetings and shall have unlimited access to management and information 

necessary for the Committee to execute its responsibilities. 

 The Chairman shall establish such other rules, as may from time to time be necessary and 

proper for the conduct of the business of the Committee.  

 
Secretary 

 

 The Committee may appoint a Secretary whose duties and responsibilities shall be to keep full 

and complete records of the proceedings of the Committee for the purposes of reporting 

Committee activities to the Board and to perform all other duties as may from time to time 

be assigned to him by the Committee. 

 The term of the Committee shall be in line with the terms of Nayifat Board of Directors.  
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 The entire Committee or any individual Committee member may be discharged,  with or 

without cause, by the affirmative vote of the majority of the Board of Directors of the 

Company.  

 Any Committee member may resign upon giving written notice to the Chairman of the 

Committee and the Chairman of the Board and the resignation shall be effective at the time 

such notice is given (unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such 

resignation).  

 If the resignation of a Committee member is effective at a future date, the Board may elect a 

successor to take office when the resignation becomes effective. 

 Board reports presented to the General Assembly will disclose the remunerations and other 

payments made to the Committee members. 

 

Meetings & Procedures 

 

 The Committee shall meet at least quarterly and at such additional times as may be necessary to 

carry out its responsibilities.  

 Committee members can attend meetings in person or via tele-conference or video-conference. 

Meeting invitations are sent one week in advance along with the meeting agenda and any other 

documents. 

 A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. 

 A member can elect another member of the Committee to act on his behalf and to vote in the 

meetings. 

 All determinations of the Committee shall be passed by the majority of the votes attending the 

meeting. 

 The Chairman of the Committee shall have a casting vote in case of an equality of votes. 

 Members of the Committee and other persons who attend ALCO meeting, based on invitations 

from the Committee’s Chairman, shall maintain silence and confidentiality on all documents they 

receive, on the contents of deliberations and on all confidential information and secrets of the 

Company, particularly operating and business secrets that are disclosed to them in the course of 

their work on the Committee. 
 

Authority 

 

 The Committee shall have the resources necessary to discharge its duties, including the authority 

to retain outside counsel or other experts or consultants, as it deems appropriate.  

 The Committee shall have direct access to, and receive regular reports from the management. It 

shall have the power to authorize investigations into any matter within the Committee’s scope of 

responsibilities. 

 

Minutes of Meetings 

 

 The deliberations and resolutions of the ALCO will be recorded in minutes. These minutes will be 

provided to each of the Committee members after the approval of all Committee members who 

attended the meeting.  

 The Committee’s meetings will be documented as follows: 

a. The Secretary of the Committee shall record in the minutes of meeting all decisions and 
recommendations arising from discussions during the meeting.  



 

 

Page 26 of 90 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL 

Version 10.0 – Dec/2021 

b. For each meeting, the minutes shall include the date and the place of the meeting, the name 
of attendees and absentees, summary of discussions took place in the meeting and their 
related decisions and recommendations. 

c. All comments of the Committee’s members shall be provided to the Secretary within 2 days 
from the date of receipt of the draft minutes from the Secretary. 

d. The Committee’s Secretary shall amend the draft minutes based on the members’ 
observations and send it attached with these observations to the Chairman.  

e. The final minutes shall be prepared according to the Chairman’s recommendations and sent 
to the Committee members duly signed by the Chairman and the Secretary. 

f. If any of the members’ comments are considered important by the member, he may ask the 
Committee’s Secretary to include his comments in the next meeting’s agenda as one of the 
main subjects. 

g. The signed copy of the minutes shall be kept attached with its related documents and 
correspondence in a special file maintained by the Secretary of the Committee.  

h. All agreed actions will be recorded in a tracking report with the agreed deadlines. The status 
of the agreed actions shall be discussed at each meeting. The Secretary shall maintain this 
tracking report and shall update this after each meeting. This report shall be attached to the 
minutes of the meeting. 

 

Reporting Responsibilities 

 

 The Committee’s Chairman shall report formally to the Board on its proceedings after each 

meeting on all matters within its duties and responsibilities. 

 The Committee shall make recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area 

within its responsibilities where action or improvement is needed. 

 

3.1.2 Responsibilities of ALCO 

 

a. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Committee will ensure the development of an appropriate 
Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy. The ALM Policy will, among other things, set forth 
the Company’s asset and liability management general policy relating to liquidity, profit rate 
management, capital management, investments, hedging and the use of derivatives, and will 
implement any additional policies and procedures relating to asset and liability management 
as may be consistent with the ALM Policy. 

b. Establishing a process to enable the recognition, assessment and management of risks that 
could affect the Company’s assets and liabilities, including identification of the Company’s risk 
tolerance levels relating to its assets and liabilities. 

c. ALCO will review the liquidity position on a periodic basis and monitor the liquidity 
management activities undertaken by the Company, including sales and lending activities and 
credit and collections. ALCO will ensure that the activities and actions undertaken by the 
business units are aligned with the Company’s Asset and Liability Management strategy. 

d. Review pricing of the Company’s products and the sensitivity of the Company’s earnings under 
varying market interest rate scenarios. 

e. Reviewing economic trends in general and advising on markets trends, competition, 
regulations and other issues that have an impact on the liquidity risks and 
asset/liability/income/profitability volatility faced by the Company. 
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f. Ensuring that the Company has adequate internal controls to maintain the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management process relating to the Company’s assets 
and liabilities, including management’s role in that process. These internal controls will be an 
integral part of the Company’s overall system of internal control and will be monitored by 
Internal Audit. 

g. Preparing and reviewing a contingency plan to ensure the Company is prepared to combat 
any crisis situation related to the liquidity risk. 

h. Reviewing and approving management’s recommended investment goals, policies and 
guidelines. Monitor management’s investment activities such as purchase, sale, exchange and 
other disposition of the investments of the Company. 

i. The Committee shall periodically evaluate the capital structure of the Company and shall 
oversee the development of long-term capital structure guidelines. 

j. Providing feedback business unit on budgets (from a liquidity risk point) 

k. The Committee will review the following management reports: 

a. Economic report include analysis and opinion on market including economic drivers 

such as profit rates, inflation, exchange rates, key market indicators, economic 

policies etc. 

b. Financial report containing data on key financial highlights and contain updates & 

variance analyses of balance sheet and profitability loss statement 

c. Liquidity risk review includes a summary of liquidity position and forecast cash flows 

d. Profit rate risk review report a summary of the profitability of all products 

l. Performing any other duties expressly delegated to it by the Board from time to time. 
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3.2 Executive Committee 

 This Charter governs the operations of the Executive Committee and details the scope of the 

Committee’s responsibilities and how it carries out those responsibilities, including its structure, 

procedures… etc.  

 The Committee shall review this Charter annually and shall recommend to the Management 

changes to the extent required under any applicable regulations, as well as to bring it into line 

with leading practices. 

 The purpose of the Executive Committee is to assist the Chief Executive Officer and Managing 

Director in performing activities and tasks as delegated to it by the Chairman, in order to facilitate 

the smooth operations of the Company.  

 The Executive Committee shall have the right to exercise all authorities delegated by the 

Chairman.  

 

3.2.1 Executive Committee Organization and Meetings 

 

Composition 

 

 Executive Committee shall consist of at least four members. 

 The Chairman of the Committee may invite other managers to attend certain meetings or part of 

meetings if it is felt that their expertise and contribution would enhance the decision making 

process. 

 

The Chairman 

 

 The Chairman of the Committee shall determine the agenda, the frequency and length of 

meetings. 

 The Chairman shall establish such other rules, as may from time to time be necessary and proper 

for the conduct of the business of the Committee.  

 

Secretary 

 

 The Committee may appoint a Secretary whose duties and responsibilities shall be to keep full and 

complete records of the proceedings of the Committee for the purposes of reporting Committee 

activities to the Chairman and to perform all other duties as may from time to time be assigned 

to him by the Committee. 

 
Removal from Committee 

 

 The permanent membership to the Committee is based upon the positions rather than individuals. 

Executives holding the positions are listed as permanent members, or those officially acting in 

such capacities, are authorized to attend the Committee meetings.  

 If a Committee member resigns from his position as an executive or employee of Nayifat, his 

membership of the Committee will also cease from the effective date of his resignation.  

 The composition of the Committee may also be changed to accommodate the changing needs of 

the Company. In such cases the Chairman may change the composition at his sole discretion and 

notify to the Board, and the decision shall be announced at the next Committee meeting. 
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Meetings & Procedures 

 

 Committee members can attend meetings in person or via tele-conference or video-conference. 

Meeting invitations are usually sent one week in advance along with the meeting agenda and any 

other documents. 

 The Committee shall meet no less than six times a year. 

 A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. 

 A member can elect another member of the Committee to act on his behalf except to vote in the 

meetings. 

 All determinations of the Committee shall be passed by the majority of the votes attending the 

meeting.  

 The Chairman of the Committee shall not have a casting vote in any case. 

 Members of the Committee and other persons who attend an Executive Committee meeting, 

based on invitations from the Committee’s Chairman, shall maintain silence and confidentiality on 

all documents they receive, on the contents of deliberations and on all confidential information 

and secrets of the Company, particularly operating and business secrets that are disclosed to them 

in the course of their work on the Committee. 

 Minutes for all meetings of the Committee shall be prepared to document the Committee's 

discharge of its responsibilities and shall be signed by the Chairman of the Committee. 

 

Authority 

 

 The Committee shall have the resources necessary to discharge its duties, including the authority 

to retain outside counsel or other experts or consultants, as it deems appropriate.  

 The Committee shall have the power to authorize investigations into any matter within the 

Committee’s scope of responsibilities. 
 

3.2.2 Responsibilities of Executive Committee  

 

a. The Committee shall review and recommend Company strategies and objectives. 

b. The Committee shall review proposed long term business, financial and operating plans and 
provide recommendations to the Chairman.  

c. The Committee shall approve proposed short and medium-term business, financial and operating 
plans in line with the Company’s approved long term plans.  

d. The Committee shall review Islamic Financing Products and bank facilities. 

e. The Committee shall approve all new products and new business. 

f. The Committee shall approve credit limits beyond the authority of Credit Committee as per the 
DOA manual 

g. The Committee shall approve SME write-offs. 

h. The Committee shall review and approve the annual manpower, operating and capital 
expenditure budgets and approve key positions for hiring. 

i. The Committee shall review and recommend to the Chairman, the proposals of Joint Ventures, 
agreements, acquisitions and divestments in line with long term business, financial and operating 
plans . 

j. The Committee shall evaluate and make recommendations to the Chairman regarding sale, lease 
or exchange of the Company’s property or assets.  

k. The Committee shall approve incorporation of branch offices in line with the Company’s approved 
strategies and long term business, financial and operating plans. 
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l. The Committee shall approve the Company’s policies and procedures except for Accounting and 
Compliance which shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

m. The Committee shall recommend to the Chairman the investment plans including the investment 
of the Company’s surplus money. 

n. Receive and discuss reports from management on legal matters and litigation of material concern 
and recommend to the Chairman the necessary actions. 

o. The Committee shall monitor the performance of the Company and its individual business units 
and shall seek explanations for any departures or deviations from the approved plans and budget. 

p. Obtain and consider performance information in relation to stakeholder feedback and benchmark 
against comparable organizations and activities. 

q. Approve operating and capital expenditures within its authority limit as specified in the Company’s 
devolution of authority matrix (DOA). 

r. The Committee shall perform any other duties expressly delegated to the Committee by the 
Chairman from time to time. 
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3.3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 Implementing Regulations of the law of Finance Companies Control issued by SAMA and Chapter 

3, 4 & Article 50 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations require the establishment of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committees. 

 This Charter governs the operations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the 

“Committee”) and details the scope of the Committee’s responsibilities and how it carries out 

those responsibilities, including its structure, procedures and membership requirements. 

 The Board of Directors shall review this Charter annually and shall make any such changes as it 

deems necessary, wholly at its own discretion, and to the extent required under any applicable 

securities laws or stock exchange regulations, as well as to bring them into line with leading 

practices. 

 The Board shall annually evaluate the Committee's performance and make recommendations to 

enhance the performance or change the members of the Committee.  

 The Committee is responsible primarily for identifying, screening and recommending candidates 

as members to the Board to fill new or vacant positions of the Board on an interim basis as they 

become available. The Committee is also responsible for the nomination of such candidates to the 

General Shareholders Meeting of the shareholders. 

 The Committee is also responsible for: 

a. Establishing Policies on remuneration of the Company's Board of Directors for their 
service in the Board in line with the Company’s Bylaws; and for their service in the 
Board’s Committees. Any amendment of such policies shall be approved by the 
General Assembly.  

b. Producing an annual report on executive remuneration for inclusion in the Company's 
annual report in line with Article 93 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations; 

c. Overseeing and advising the Board on the adoption of plans and policies that govern 
the Company's remuneration programs;  

d. Ensuring of the Board’s independent members; 

e. Reviewing the Board’s strengths and weaknesses and recommending improvements; 
and 

f. Performing such other duties and responsibilities as are detailed in and consistent 
with this Charter. 

 

3.3.1 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Organization and Meetings 

 

Composition 

 

 The Company's Board shall, by resolution thereof, set up a committee to be named the 

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee”, the committee shall consist of at least three 

members and no more than five Members without Executive Directors, provided that there shall 

be at least two Independent Directors among them. The Chairman of the Committee shall be 

Independent. 

 The Company's General Assembly, as per the Board recommendation, issues a regulation for the 

committee including its procedure, duties and rules for selecting its members, the term of their 

membership and their remunerations. 

 The members of the Committee shall be free from any relationship that, in the opinion of the 

Board, would interfere with their exercise of independent judgment. Applicable laws and 
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regulations will be followed in evaluating a member's independence as per “Article 20 of CMA 

Corporate Governance Regulations”.  

 The Board shall appoint the Committee's members and its Chairman and they might be removed 

by the Board. 

 The right to attend Committee meetings is conferred exclusively to its members. Other individuals 

may be invited to attend all or part of any meeting as and when appropriate.  

 

The Chairman 

 

 A Chairman of the Committee (the “Chairman”) is named by the Board of Directors.  

 In the absence of the Committee Chairman, the remaining present members shall elect one 

amongst themselves to chair the meeting.  

 The Chairman shall determine the agenda, the frequency and length of meetings and shall have 

unlimited access to management and information necessary for the Committee to execute its 

responsibilities. 

 The Chairman shall establish such other rules, as may from time to time be necessary and proper 

for the conduct of the business of the Committee.  

 

Secretary 

 

The Committee may appoint a Secretary whose duties and responsibilities shall be to keep full and 

complete records of the proceedings of the Committee for the purposes of reporting Committee 

activities to the Board and to perform all other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by 

the Committee. 

 

Committee Term 

 

The term of the Committee shall be in line with the term of the Board of Directors of Nayifat. 

 

Committee Discharge 

 

 The entire Committee or any individual Committee member may be discharged, with or without 

cause, by the affirmative vote of the majority of the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 Any Committee member may resign upon giving written notice to the Chairman of the Committee 

and the Chairman of the Board and the resignation shall be effective at the time such notice is 

given (unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation).  

 If the resignation of a Committee member is effective at a future date, the Board may elect a 

successor to take office when the resignation becomes effective. 

 

Remuneration of the Committee 

 

 Each member of the Committee is entitled to the below compensation as recommended by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board and Annual General 

Meeting: 

 An attendance payment for each meeting attended by the Committee member and  

 An annual remuneration. Members from outside the Board are entitled for an annual 

membership fees as approved by the Board. 
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 Committee members who are resident outside Riyadh are entitled to all out of pocket expenses 

incurred by them to attend the meeting. Such expenses include a first class ticket (back and forth) 

from his place of residence to the Company’s head office or to the place where the meeting is held 

as well as any accommodation and transportation expenses incurred by them.  

 The annual Board report will state the remunerations and other payments paid to the Committee 

members during the financial year. 

 

Meetings & Procedures 

 

 The Committee shall meet twice a year and at such additional times as may be necessary to carry 

out its responsibilities. Committee members can attend meetings in person or via tele-conference 

or video-conference. Meeting invitations are sent one week in advance along with the meeting 

agenda and any other documents. 

 A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum.  

 A member can’t elect another member of the Committee to act on his behalf and to vote in the 

meetings.  

 The Chairman shall have a casting vote in case of an equality of votes. 

 Members of the Committee and other persons who attend a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee meeting shall maintain silence and confidentiality on all documents they receive, on 

the contents of deliberations and on all confidential information and secrets of the Company and, 

particularly operating and business secrets that are disclosed to them in the course of their work 

on the Committee. 

 The Committee shall keep written minutes of its meetings as detailed in this document under 

“Minutes of Meetings”.  

 The Committee may follow up the results of previous meetings and outstanding matters. 

 

Authority 

 

The Committee shall have the access to resources and information necessary for it to discharge its 

duties and responsibilities. 

 

Minutes of Meetings 

 

The deliberations and resolutions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be recorded 

in minutes. Such minutes will be kept with the Board of Directors’ records. These minutes will be 

provided to each of the Committee members after the approval of all Committee members who 

attended the meeting.  

The Committee’s meetings will be documented as follows: 

a. The Chairman and the Secretary of the Committee shall record in the minutes of 
meeting all decisions and recommendations arising from discussions during the 
meeting.  

b. For each meeting, the minutes shall include the date and the place of the meeting, 
the name of attendees and absentees, summary of discussions took place in the 
meeting and their related decisions and recommendations.  

c. All comments of the Committee’s members shall be provided to the Secretary within 
a week from the date of receipt of the draft minutes from the Secretary. 

d. The Committee’s Secretary shall amend the draft minutes based on the members’ 
observations and send it attached with these observations to the Chairman.  
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e. The final minutes shall be prepared according to the Chairman’s recommendations 
and sent to the Committee members duly signed by the Chairman and the Secretary. 

f. If any of the members’ comments are considered important by the member, he may 
ask the Committee’s Secretary to include his comments in the next meeting’s agenda 
as one of the main subjects. The next meeting’s agenda will be then decided by the 
Committee’s Chairman. 

g. The signed copy of the minutes shall be kept attached with its related documents and 
correspondence in a special file maintained by the Secretary of the Committee.  

 

Reporting Responsibilities 

 

 The Committee’s Chairman shall report formally (through the minutes of meeting) to the Board 

on its proceedings after each meeting on all matters within its duties and responsibilities. 

 The Committee shall make recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area 

within its responsibilities where action or improvement is needed. 

 The Committee shall review the annual report of the Company’s remuneration policy pertaining 

to the remuneration of the Board of Directors and its Committees’ members, which will form part 

of the Company’s Board of Directors Report. The Board of Directors Report should also state the 

frequency of, and attendance by members at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

meetings. 

 
3.3.2 Responsibilities of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
 The Committee shall annually assess the skills, competencies and industry backgrounds that 

are needed to strengthen and balance the Board and shall pass their recommendations to the 
Board of Directors.  

 The Committee shall verify annually the independence of independent members as per Article 
20 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations and the existence or non-existence of any 
conflict of interests if the member is acting concurrently as a board member of another 
company.  

 The Committee shall consider several factors in assessing the potential candidates including, 
but not limited to:  

1.1. integrity, honesty and accountability;  

1.2. successful leadership experience; 

1.3. strong business acumen;  

1.4. independence and absence of conflicts of interests; and  

1.5. Ability to devote the necessary time to fulfil their directorial responsibilities.  
 The Committee shall also make recommendations to the Board with regard to directors 

nominated to be selected for membership of other Board committees. In doing so, the 
Committee shall consider the following: 

 required qualifications for membership on each committee, such as the Audit Committee 
requirement for at least one expert in financial matters; policy of periodic rotation of directors 
among committees;  

 Limitations on the number of consecutive years a director should serve on any one of the 
Board committees. If the tenure of directors on any committee is restricted by law or by the 
Company’s Corporate Governance Framework, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee will ensure that the director’s membership of the committee will not exceed that 
maximum term specified; and guidelines or circulars issued by SAMA & CMA. 
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 The Committee shall recommend nominees that it believes will enhance the Board's ability to 
manage and direct, in an effective manner, the affairs and business of the Company. 

 The Committee shall ensure that an orientation program is available for new Board members 
and shall also make available continuing education programs for all members of the Board. 

 The Committee shall specify the minimum time to be devoted by the directors for work related 
to their role as members of the Board of Directors or any of its committees.  

 The Committee shall help the Board in selecting and developing potential Board Members, 
and in long term succession planning as deemed necessary. 

 The Committee shall identify the strengths and weaknesses of the Board and propose 
solutions to address any shortcomings. 

 The Committee shall ensure that the Managing Director (“MD”)/Chief Executive Officer 
(“CEO”) has drafted procedures for the timely and efficient transfer of his responsibilities in 
the event of his sudden incapacitation or departure. The Committee shall review these 
procedures with the MD/CEO and also receive from him his recommendations for longer term 
succession arrangements. 

 The Committee shall establish criteria for evaluation of performance of the MD/CEO and such 
criteria shall be communicated to the MD/CEO. 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will assist the Board to establish criteria for 
evaluation of the Board Chairman’s performance and such criteria shall be communicated to 
the Chairman. 

 The Committee's recommendations to the Board shall be required before a Board member, 
who is not an employee of the Company, enter into any consulting arrangements with the 
Company. 

 The Committee shall recommend the compensation and benefits policies of the Company.  
 Recommend the corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the MD/CEO. 
 Conduct an annual review of the MD’s/CEO’s performance to ensure that the MD/CEO is 

providing adequate leadership for the Company in the long and short term. The MD/CEO shall 
not attend meeting sessions discussing his performance or remuneration, in case he is a 
member in this Committee.  

 The Committee shall recommend all forms of compensation for the Board’s Committees 
members, the Board’s; and Committees’ Secretaries. Such compensation will include the 
following: 

 An attendance payment for each meeting and Annual compensation. 

 The Committee shall also recommend the compensation of the Board of Directors pursuant 

to the Article 21 of the Company Bylaws. The Committee shall review annually the 

remuneration of all Board’s committees’ members and make recommendations to the Board 

for any revision.  
 In laying down the compensation policies, the standards related to performance shall be 

followed by the Committee. Moreover, the Committee shall: 
a. Consider competitive rewards to attract, motivate and retain highly-skilled executives.  
b. Apply demanding key performance indicators (KPIs), including financial and non-financial 

measures of performance. 
c. Review and recommend to the Board of Directors the Human Resources policies and 

procedures. 
d. The Committee shall produce an annual report on executive remuneration for inclusion in 

the Company's annual reports in compliance with applicable authority rules and 
regulations. 

e. The Committee shall discuss and review its performance at least annually to determine 
whether it is functioning effectively and agree actions on how they can improve their 
performance. A report on the Committee’s performance shall be submitted to the Board 
of Directors. 



 

 

Page 36 of 90 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL 

Version 10.0 – Dec/2021 

f. The Committee shall perform any other duties or responsibilities expressly delegated to 
the Committee by the Board from time to time. 

g. The Committee may obtain advice and assistance, as needed, from external or internal 
legal counsel, accounting firm, search firm, compensation specialist, or other advisors, 
with sole authority to retain, terminate and negotiate the terms and condition of the 
assignment. 

h. In consultation with MD/CEO, the Committee shall review the succession planning process 
so that there is sufficient pool of qualified internal candidates to fill senior and leadership 
positions and to identify opportunities, performance gaps and the next steps as part of 
the Nayifat’s executive succession planning and development process, all of which shall 
be reviewed with the Committee. 

i. prepare a clear policy for the remunerations of the Board members and its committees 
and the Executive Management, and presenting such policy to the Board in preparation 
for approval by the General Assembly, provided that such policy follows standards that 
linked to performance, and disclosing and ensuring the implementation of such policy;  

j. Clarify the relation between the paid remunerations and the adopted remuneration 
policy, and highlighting any material deviation from that policy.  

k. periodically review the remuneration policy and assessing its effectiveness in achieving its 
objectives; and  

l. Provide recommendations to the Board in respect of the remunerations of its members, 
the committees’ members and Senior Executives, in accordance with the approved policy.  

m. Prepare a remuneration policy.  
 Suggesting clear policies and standards for membership of the Board and the Executive 

Management; 
 providing recommendations to the Board for the nomination or re-nomination of its members 

in accordance with approved policies and standards, taking into account that nomination shall 
not include any person convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude or dishonesty; 

 Preparing a description of the capabilities and qualifications required for membership of the 
Board and Executive Management positions; 

 Determining the amount of time that the member shall allocate to the activities of the Board; 
 Annually reviewing the skills and expertise required of the Board members and the Executive 

Management; 
 Reviewing the structure of the Board and the Executive Management and providing 

recommendations regarding changes that may be made to such structure; 
 Annually ensuring the independence of Independent Directors as per Article 20 of CMA 

Corporate Governance Regulations and the absence of any conflicts of interest if a Board 
member also acts as a member of the Board of directors of another company; 

 Providing job descriptions for the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors and 
the Senior Executive Management; 

 Setting procedures to be followed if the position of a member of the Board or a Senior 
Executive becomes vacant; and 

 Determining the strengths and weaknesses of the Board and recommending remedy solutions 
that serve the Company's interests. 

 

3.3.3 Relationship with others  
 
Executive Committee 

 The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may elect to consult with the 

Chairman of the Executive Committee to discuss the performance and compensation of the 

MD/CEO and the senior executives of the Company.  
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 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may also elect to coordinate with Executive 

Committee to ensure that proper succession plan is in place in the Company for the MD/CEO 

senior executive positions. 

 
Audit Committee 

 The Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee may coordinate with Audit Committee 

to oversee the appropriate and adequate disclosure is made with respect to remuneration of 

Chairman of the Board, members of the Board and top five executives who have received the 

highest compensation and remuneration from the Company. The MD/CEO (if not a member in the 

Board) and the CFO shall be included if they are not within the top five executives, in accordance 

with the CMA Corporate Governance Regulations in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors. 
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Remuneration Policy 

 

Without prejudice to the provisions of the Companies Law and the Capital Market Law and their 

implementing regulations, the remuneration policy shall: 

1) Be consistent with the Company's strategy and objectives; 

2) Provide remunerations with the aim of encouraging the Board members and Executive 

Management to achieve the success of the Company and its long-term development, by for 

example making the variable part of the remuneration linked to the long-term performance; 

3) Determine remuneration based on job level, duties and responsibilities, educational 

qualifications, practical experience, skills and level of performance; 

4) Be consistent with the magnitude, nature and level of risks faced by the Company; 

5) Take into consideration the practices of other companies in respect of the determination of 

remunerations, and avoid the disadvantages of such comparisons in leading to unjustifiable 

increases in remunerations and compensations; 

6) attract talented professionals and retain and motivate them without exaggeration; 

7) Be prepared in coordination with the nomination committee in respect of new appointments; 

8) take into consideration situations where remunerations should be suspended or reclaimed if it 

is determined that such remunerations were set based on inaccurate information provided by a 

member of the Board or the executive management, in order to prevent abuse of power to obtain 

unmerited remunerations; and 

9) Regulating the grant of Company's shares to the Board members and the Executive 

Management, whether newly issued or purchased by the Company. 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1. This policy (the “Policy”) forms an integral part of Nayifat Finance Company’s (the “Company” 

or “Nayifat”) Corporate Governance Framework. 

1.2. Expressions and words in this Policy shall have the meaning set forth in the Companies Law, 

the Rules on the Offer of Securities and Continuing Obligations and Corporate Governance 

Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority (the “CMA”). 

 

2. Purpose and Objectives 

 

2.1. As per the Corporate Governance Regulations, the Company’s nomination and remuneration 

committee (“NRC”) and board of directors (“Board”) have endorsed this Policy in relation to 

the remuneration1 of the members of the Board and management of the Company, including 

senior executives2 for the approval of the Company’s general assembly (“General Assembly”). 

2.2. This Policy reflects the interests of the shareholders and the Company, taking into 

consideration any specific matters, including the assignments and the responsibility 

undertaken. In addition, the Policy helps promote long- term goals for safeguarding Nayifat’s 

interests. The Policy intends to achieve following objectives: 

2.2.1. Be in line with the Nayifat’s strategy and objectives. 

2.2.2. Provide remuneration guidelines with the aim of encouraging the Board members and 

senior executives achieve the success of the Company and its long-term development. 

2.2.3. Be consistent with the magnitude, nature and level of risks faced by Nayifat.  

2.2.4. Take into consideration the practices of other regional and global, considering their size 

and operations in relevance to Nayifat, in respect of the determination of 
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remunerations, and avoid the disadvantages of such comparisons in leading to 

unjustifiable increases in remuneration and compensation. 

2.2.5. Regulating the offer of Company's shares to the Board members and the senior 

executives, whether newly issued or purchased by the Company. 
1 Amounts, allowances, dividends and the like, periodic or annual bonuses linked to performance, long or short term incentive plans and any other in-kind benefits except the actual 
reasonable expenses and fees incurred by the company to enable the Board Member to perform his duties. 
2 Persons responsible for managing the daily operations of the Company, and proposing and executing strategic decisions, such as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and his/her delegates 
and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 
 

3. Remuneration of Members of the Board and the Board Committees  

 

3.1. Subject to the Companies Law, the regulations issued by the CMA and Company’s Bylaws, the 

remuneration of the Board members shall be determined by the General Assembly, which 

may be in the form of fixed salary, attendance fees, in-kind benefits, a percentage of the net 

profits or a combination of two or more of the aforementioned benefits.  

3.2. With the exception of Audit Committee, the Board determines the remuneration of the 

members of the Board committees based on the recommendation of the NRC.  

3.3. The remuneration of the Audit Committee shall be determined by the General Assembly 

based on the Board’s recommendation.  

3.4. The remuneration to be received by a Board member in consideration for its role as a member 

of the Board (and if applicable, a member of any of the Board committees) shall be subject 

to any statutory remuneration limitations prescribed under the applicable laws and 

regulations. 

3.5. Subject to any applicable remuneration limitation, should a Board member assume specific 

ad-hoc tasks beyond the normal work as member of the Board, the Board will decide on a 

fixed fee for such tasks subject to approval by General Assembly. 

3.6. As per Article 4 of the Regulatory Rules and Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies 

Law, the remuneration of the independent directors shall not be a percentage of Nayifat’s 

profits nor shall be tied to Nayifat’s profitability (whether directly or indirectly). 

3.7. Expenses such as travel and accommodation relating to Board meetings, meetings of the 

Committee and relevant training are reimbursed in accordance with the Company’s travel 

policy applicable at senior executive’s level. 

 

4. Remuneration of Members of the Management 

 

4.1. Nayifat believes that a combination of fixed and performance-based pay to the management 

helps ensure that it can attract and retain key employees. 

4.2. The NRC shall submit its recommendations in relation to the remuneration of the members 

of the Board, members of the Company’s committees and senior executives to the Board. 

Such recommendations shall be considered by the Board when making its decision with 

respect to the remuneration of the senior executives of the Company. 

4.3. Unless the Board decides otherwise, management, based on their level, receives a 

competitive remuneration package as determined by the Board from time to time at its 

discretion. 
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The Nomination and membership Standards of the Board: 

Appointment of the Board members 

 When nominating a Board member, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall take into 
consideration the provisions of these Regulations and the requirements set by the Authorities. 

 Nayifat’s bylaws specify the number of the Board members “9 Members”.  

 The General Assembly shall elect the Board members for the term stated in the Nayifat’s bylaws 
“three years”. Board members may be re-elected. 

 A Board member shall not be a member of the Boards of Directors of more than five listed joint 
stock companies at the same time.  

 The nomination shall not include any person convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude or 
dishonesty; 

 The nominated shall not be a senior executive or a board member in a company that has been 
declared bankrupt or liquidated based on a judicial order. 

 The independent nominated shall ensure that there are no relationships or circumstances that 
affect or may affect his/her independence. 

 The nominated shall not a board member of any joint stock companies competing with Nayifat. 

 
Conditions for the membership 
 
A member of the Board is required to be professionally capable and has the required experience, 
knowledge, skill and independence, which enable him/her to perform his/her duties efficiently. 
He/she shall have the following qualifications in particular:  

1) Ability to lead: He/she shall enjoy leadership skills which enable him/her to delegate powers in 
order to enhance performance and apply best practices in effective management and compliance with 
professional ethics and values.  

2) Competency: He/she shall have the academic qualifications and proper professional and personal 
skills as well as an appropriate level of training and practical experience related to the current and 
future businesses of the Company and the knowledge of management, economics, accounting, law or 
governance, as well as the desire to learn and receive training.  

3) Ability to guide: He/she shall have the technical, leadership, and administrative competencies as 
well as the ability to take prompt decisions, and understand technical requirements and developments 
related to the job. He/she shall also be able to provide strategic guidance and long-term planning and 
have a clear future vision.  

4) Financial knowledge: He/she shall have the ability to read and understand financial statements and 
reports.  

5) Physical fitness: He/she shall not suffer from any health issue that may hinder him/her from 
performing his/her duties and responsibilities.  
 
Principles of truthfulness, honesty and loyalty 
 
Each member of the Board shall comply with the principles of truthfulness, honesty, loyalty, and care 
of the interests of the Company and its shareholders, and prioritise their interests over his/her 
personal interests. This shall include, in particular, the following: 
1) Truthfulness: is achieved when the relationship between the Board member and the Company is 
an honest professional relationship, and he/she discloses to the Company any significant information 
before entering into any transaction or contract with the Company or any of its affiliates.  
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2) Loyalty: is achieved when the Board member avoids transactions that may entail conflicts of 
interest and ensures fairness of dealing, in compliance with the provisions relating to conflicts of 
interest in these Regulations.  

3) Care: is achieved by performing the duties and responsibilities set forth in the Companies Law, the 
Capital Market Law and their implementing regulations and the Company’s bylaws and other relevant 
laws.  
 
Required Documents 
 

 Fill out and sign the company’s application, CV, qualifications and experiences, clear and valid copy 
of ID for individuals / CR for companies, clear and valid copy of Passport and contact details. 

 Fill out and sign on each page the form (FitandProper) issued by the Central Saudi Bank “SAMA”, 
in (PDF) format and (word) format. 

sa/Finance/FinanceForms/Fit_and_Proper_Form.docx-https://www.sama.gov.sa/ar  

 Fill out and sign on each page the form (3) issued by the Financial Market Authority “CMA”, in 
(PDF) format and (word) format. 

RulesRegulations/FormsSite/Documents/Form3.dochttps://cma.org.sa/_layouts/15/download.aspx?SourceUrl=/  

 
 Publishing the Nomination Announcement 
 

 The Company shall publish the nomination announcement on the websites of the Company and 
through any other medium specified by CMA; to invite persons wishing to be nominated to the 
membership of the Board, provided that the nomination period shall remain open for at least a 
month from the date of the announcement. 

 Upon calling for the General Assembly, the Company shall announce on the Exchange's website 
information about the nominees for the membership of the Board which shall include the 
nominees' experience, qualifications, skills and their previous and current jobs and memberships. 
The Company shall make a copy of the mentioned information available in the Company's head 
office and its website.  

 The number of nominees to the Board whose names are presented to the General Assembly shall 
be more than the number of available seats to give a chance to the General Assembly to select 
the Board members among those nominees. 

 Cumulative voting shall be used in electing the Board, in which it is not allowed to use the voting 
right of a single share more than once.  

 Voting in the General Assembly shall be confined to the Board nominees whose information has 
been announced. 

 Nayifat shall notify the Authority of the names of the Board members and description of their 
memberships within five business days from the commencement date of the Board term or from 
the date of their appointment, whichever is shorter, as well as any changes that may affect their 
membership within five business days from the occurrence of such changes.  

 
Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest by the Nominee 
 

A person who desires to nominate himself/herself for the membership of the Board shall disclose to 
the Board or the General Assembly any cases of conflicts of interest, including:  
1) having direct or indirect interest in the contracts and businesses entered into for the benefit of the 
Company in which he/she desires to be nominated to the Board.  
2) engaging in business that may compete with the Company or any of its activities.  
 

 
 

https://www.sama.gov.sa/ar-sa/Finance/FinanceForms/Fit_and_Proper_Form.docx
https://cma.org.sa/_layouts/15/download.aspx?SourceUrl=/RulesRegulations/FormsSite/Documents/Form3.doc
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Nomination Rights of Shareholders 
 
None of the provisions of this Chapter shall prejudice the right of any shareholder to nominate 
him/herself or others to the membership of the Board in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations. 
 
Membership Vacancy 

 

 As Nayifat’s bylaws, a temporary member shall be appointed in case of membership vacancy, 
according to the order in which votes were obtained in the GA that elected the Board. 

 Nayifat shall notify the Authority within five business days from the date of the appointment.The 
appointment is presented to the Ordinary General Assembly at its first meeting, and the new 
member completes the term of his predecessor. The company announces this in accordance with 
the regulatory controls. 
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3.4 Credit Committee 

The Board of Directors in its attempt to adopt a Corporate Governance Framework and in order to 

ensure it remains aligned with leading practices in terms of corporate governance, has prepared this 

Credit Committee Charter.  

 This Charter governs the operations of the Credit Committee (the Committee) and details the 

scope of the Committee’s responsibilities and how it carries out those responsibilities, including 

its structure, procedures… etc.  

 The Committee shall review this Charter annually and shall recommend to the Board changes to 

the extent required under any applicable regulations, as well as to bring it in line with leading 

practices. 

 The Board shall annually evaluate the Committee's performance and make recommendations to 

enhance the performance or change the members of the Committee.  

 The Committee is tasked with overseeing and reviewing the credit operations, including credit 

objectives, credit risk, credit policies, controls, procedures and review of credit exposure.  

 The Credit Committee shall have the right to exercise all authorities delegated by the Board of 

Directors. The exercise of such authorities by the Credit Committee shall not prejudice the 

authority reserved for the full Board.  

 The Committee shall report to the Board of Directors. 

 The Committee shall not have the right to amend any decisions or resolutions of the Board. 

 

3.4.1 Credit Committee Organization and Meetings 

 

Composition 

 

 Credit Committee currently consist of at least three members 

 The Board of Directors shall appoint the Committee members and Chairman. Members of the 

Committee can be removed by the Board. 

 The CEO can attend the Committee meetings. In the absence of the Committee Chairman, the 

remaining present members shall elect one amongst themselves to chair the meeting.  

 

The Chairman 

 

The Chairman of the Committee (the Chairman) shall determine the agenda, the frequency and length 

of meetings and shall have unlimited access to management and information necessary for the 

Committee to execute its responsibilities. 

The Chairman shall establish such other rules, as may from time to time be necessary and proper for 

the conduct of the business of the Committee.  

 

Secretary 

 

The Committee may appoint a Secretary whose duties and responsibilities shall be to keep full and 

complete records of the proceedings of the Committee for the purposes of reporting Committee 

activities to the Board and to perform all other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by 

the Committee. 
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Committee Discharge 

 

  The entire Committee or any individual Committee member may be discharged, with or Without 

cause, by the affirmative vote of the majority of the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 Any Committee member may resign upon giving written notice to the Chairman of the Committee 

and the Chairman of the Board and the resignation shall be effective at the time such notice is 

given (unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation).  

 If the resignation of a Committee member is effective at a future date, the Board may elect a 

successor take office when the resignation becomes effective. 

 

Remuneration of the Committee 

 
Board of Directors reports presented to the General Assembly will disclose the remunerations and 
other payments made to the Committee members. 

 

Meetings & Procedures 

 

 The Committee shall meet at least quarterly and at such additional times as may be necessary to 

carry out its responsibilities.  

 Committee members can attend meetings in person or via tele-conference or video-conference. 

Meeting invitations are sent one week in advance along with the meeting agenda and any other 

documents. 

 A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. 

 A member can elect another member of the Committee to act on his behalf and to vote in the 

meetings. 

 All determinations of the Committee shall be passed by the majority of the votes attending the 

meeting. 

 The Chairman of the Committee shall have a casting vote in case of an equality of votes. 

 Members of the Committee and other persons who attend a Credit Committee meeting, based on 

invitations from the Committee’s Chairman, shall maintain silence and confidentiality on all 

documents they receive, on the contents of deliberations and on all confidential information and 

secrets of the Company, particularly operating and business secrets that are disclosed to them in 

the course of their work on the Committee. 

 

Authority 

 The Committee shall have the resources necessary to discharge its duties, including the authority 

to retain outside counsel or other experts or consultants, as it deems appropriate.  

 The Committee shall have direct access to, and receive regular reports from the management. It 

shall have the power to authorize investigations into any matter within the Committee’s scope of 

responsibilities. 

 

Minutes of Meetings 

 The deliberations and resolutions of the Credit Committee will be recorded in minutes. These 

minutes will be provided to each of the Committee members after the approval of all Committee 

members who attended the meeting.  

 The Secretary of the Committee shall record in the minutes of meeting all decisions and 

recommendations arising from discussions during the meeting.  
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 For each meeting, the minutes shall include the date and the place of the meeting, the name of 

attendees and absentees, summary of discussions took place in the meeting and their related 

decisions and recommendations. 

 All comments of the Committee’s members shall be provided to the Secretary within 1-2 days 

from the date of receipt of the draft minutes from the Secretary. 

 The Committee’s Secretary shall amend the draft minutes based on the members’ observations 

and send it attached with these observations to the Chairman.  

 The final minutes shall be prepared according to the Chairman’s recommendations and sent to 

the Committee members duly signed by the Chairman and the Secretary. 

 If any of the members’ comments are considered important by the member, he may ask the 

Committee’s Secretary to include his comments in the next meeting’s agenda as one of the main 

subjects 

 The signed copy of the minutes shall be kept attached with its related documents and 

correspondence in a special file maintained by the Secretary of the Committee.  

 All agreed actions will be recorded in a tracking report with the agreed deadlines. The status of 

the agreed actions shall be discussed at each meeting. The Secretary shall maintain this tracking 

report and shall update this after each meeting. This report shall be attached to the minutes of 

the meeting. 

 

Reporting Responsibilities 

 
 The Committee’s Chairman shall report formally to the Board on its proceedings after each 
meeting on all matters within its duties and responsibilities. 
 The Committee shall make recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area 
within its responsibilities where action or improvement is needed. 

 

3.4.2 Responsibilities of the Credit Committee 

a. The Credit Committee’s mandate is to provide an oversight of the Company’s credit activities on 
behalf of the Board. 

b. Reviewing and approving credit policies and procedures and ensure that any 
deviations/exceptions to policies are communicated to the Board which may recommend 
corrective actions to be taken. 

c. Establishing customer credit limits for management approvals of Consumer and SME Islamic 
Financing Product (and stipulate in DOA) beyond which Credit Committee should review and 
approve credit limits. Critically review SME credit applications for the limits sanctioned to the 
Credit Committee, Credit Manager Recommendations and issuing final decisions in the form of an 
approval or a rejection.  

d. Establishing provision and write off policy and related approvals for installment receivables and 
any recommended changes.  

e. Establishing the customer classifications (e.g. based on customer groups, industry categories, 
geographic location, product types, etc.) and customer scoring criteria to be used in pricing of 
Company products and setting of concentration / exposure limits.  

f. Providing directives to management (wherever necessary) to prepare Credit Risk Analysis Report 
and periodically review credit risk of portfolio. Review and assess information related to the credit 
risk of the Company, including adversely classified Islamic Financing Product, high-risk Islamic 
Financing Product and Islamic Financing Product limits and monitoring of non-performing Islamic 
Financing Product. Discuss problem and distressed Islamic Financing Product with the Credit 
Department, offering recommendations and approving debt rescheduling. 
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g. Establishing policy for collaterals and rules for repositioning in line with SAMA guidelines. 

h. Reviewing the credit process, including the credit risk management strategies, policies, controls 
and systems of the Company. Ensure that the systems established by the Board to identify, assess, 
manage and monitor Islamic Financing Product are designed and operating effectively. 

i. Ensuring that credit applications and customer files are properly archived and information 
confidentiality is secured. 

j. Performing any other duties or responsibilities expressly delegated to the Committee by the Board 
from time to time or as required for the monitoring and improvement of credit operations. 
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3.5 Audit Committee 

 The Audit Committee shall assist the General Assembly/ Board of Directors in fulfilling its 

responsibilities with respect to the Company’s internal control functions. In addition, the Audit 

Committee shall be responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial reporting practices 

and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements for the Company. The Audit Committee 

shall also review the Finance & Accounting, Compliance & Anti-money laundering (AML) policies 

of the Company.  

 The Audit Committee shall closely monitor the Company’s Internal Audit Department, 

Compliance, Anti-money laundering Department, and the External Auditors. 

 External Auditors are responsible for auditing and issuing an opinion on the Company’s financial 

statements.  

 Internal Audit Department is responsible for evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the 

Company’s Internal Control System, Risk Management, Compliance and Corporate Governance 

processes. The Company’s Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and 

the Board of Directors. Administratively Internal Audit Department reports to the MD/CEO.  

 
Provision 

 
 This Charter for the Audit Committee has been drafted in accordance with the laws of the Kingdom 

of Saudi Arabia, the Bylaws of the Company and other internal corporate documents. 
 Implementing Regulations of the law on Supervisions of Finance Companies issued by SAMA 

guidelines issued by the MoCI dated 1437 H and Chapter 2 of the Corporate Governance 
Regulations issued by CMA requires the establishment of the Audit Committee. 

 The General Assembly/Board of Directors of the Company remains determined in its endeavor to 

at least meet the SAMA & CMA requirements. Accordingly, and to ensure the leading practice of 

governance to protect the shareholders and stakeholders rights, the Company has prepared this 

Audit Committee Charter.  

 This Audit Committee Charter details the scope of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities and how 

it carries out those responsibilities, including its structure, process and membership requirements. 

 To preserve the independence and authority of the Internal Audit Department, the Company has 

followed the Institute of Internal Audit’s recommendations that the Head of Internal Audit reports 

/ Outsource Company (in the case of outsourcing Internal Audit) of functionally to the Audit 

Committee. Reporting functionality means that the Audit Committee shall: 

a. Approve the Internal Audit Charter. 

b. Approve the Internal Audit Risk Assessment and related Internal Audit Plan. 

c. Receive and review communications from the Head of Internal Audit on the results of the 
Audit activities or other matters that the Head of Internal Audit and/or the Audit Committee 
determine as necessary. 

d. Call meetings with the Head of Internal Audit/ or Outsourcing Company without management 
present. 

e. Make appropriate inquiries of management and Head of Internal Audit/ Outsourcing 
Company to determine whether there is scope or budgetary limitations that impede the ability 
of the Internal Audit Department to execute its responsibilities. 

f. Assess whether the strength and resources of the Internal Audit Department is sufficient to 
carry out its duties unimpeded, and without compromise. 

 Administrative reporting is the reporting relationship within Organization’s management 

structure that facilitates the day-to-day operations of the Internal Audit Department. The 

administrative reporting line of the Head of Internal Audit Department/ Outsourcing Company 

shall be to the Company’s MD/CEO to afford the Internal Audit Department appropriate support 
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to accomplish its day to day activities. This support shall include positioning the Department and 

the Head of Internal Audit in the organization’s structure in a manner that offers appropriate 

standing for the Department within the organization. Administrative reporting typically includes: 

i. Budgeting. 

ii. Human resource administration including personnel evaluations and compensation. 

iii. Internal communications. 

iv. Administration of the Company’s internal policies and procedures. 

v. Compliance with regulations. 

 The Audit Committee closely monitors separate groups, on behalf of the General Assembly/Board 

and ensures that the Company is appropriately conducting business with the following groups: 

i.The Company’s Internal Audit Department,  

ii.The Company’s External Auditors,  

iii.The Examiners of the Regulatory bodies. 

iv.The Compliance Quarterly Report 

 The Internal Audit Department shall not undertake any controlling function within the Company 

which may impair its independence.  

 Management shall be responsible for the preparation, presentation, and integrity of the 

Company’s financial statements. It shall also be responsible for the appropriateness of the 

accounting principles and reporting policies that are used by the Company and for establishing 

and maintaining internal control over financial reporting.  

 

3.5.1 Audit Committee Organization and Meetings 

 
Composition 
 
 The General Assembly shall appoint an Audit Committee of at least three members of the Board 

or independent professionals who are not Board members. Executive Board members are not 
eligible for Audit Committee membership.  

 the members from outside the Board are more than the members from inside the Board (As 
SAMA’s instructions). 

 It is preferable that the number of Nayifat Audit Committee members may not exceed 5 members.  
 The Chairman of the audit committee shall be an Independent Director in line with CMA Corporate 

Governance Article 54 Audit Committee Formation. The Company's General Assembly shall, upon 
a recommendation of the Board, issue a regulation for the audit committee which shall include 
the rules and procedures for the activities and duties of the committee, the rules for selecting its 
members, the means of their nomination, the term of their membership, their remunerations, 
and the mechanism of appointing temporary members in case a seat in the committee becomes 
vacant. 

 Each Committee member will be both independent and financially literate, or become financially 
literate within a reasonable period of time. At least one of the Committee members shall be 
specialist in financial and accounting matters.  

 No Committee member shall simultaneously serve on the Audit Committee of a competitor of 
Nayifat. 

 Neither the Chairman of the Board nor the Chairman of the Executive Committee shall chair the 
Audit Committee. 

 In the absence of the Committee Chairman, the remaining present members shall elect one 
amongst themselves to chair the meeting.  
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 If the Committee member’s position becomes vacant during the membership period, the Board 
may appoint a temporary member to fill the vacant position, provided that he is experienced and 
competent to fill the vacant position for the remainder of the membership period of his 
predecessor. Such appointment shall be submitted to the ordinary General Assembly at its first 
meeting. 

  
The Chairman  
 
 The Chairman of the Audit Committee represents the Committee in the Board of Directors’ 

meetings and to any other party. The Chairman shall be assigned by the General Assembly based 
on the Board members’ recommendation, or such appointment can be delegated to the 
Committee.  

 The Chairman organizes the Committee’s meetings, determines Audit Committee meetings’ 
agenda and shall have access to all Company’s information, records and he can meet with any 
member of the Company’s management as required. The Chairman also sets up the Committee’s 
procedures in line with this Charter to facilitate the fulfillment of the Committee duties. 

 
Secretary 

 
 A secretary can be assigned by the Committee. He can be one of the Committee’s members or a 

non-Committee member and he can be from outside the Board of Directors. If the secretary is not 
a Committee member, he will attend the Committee meetings without having any voting rights. 

 The secretary is responsible for the following: 
a. keeping complete records of the Committee’s meetings for the purpose of issuing 

reports about the performance of the Committee to the Board of Directors; 
b. circulating the Committee resolutions to the concerned parties; 
c. coordinating with concerned departments regarding Committee resolution that 

necessitate legal compliance and regulatory procedures; 
d. establishing a mechanism for tracking and following-up the Committee resolutions; 

and  
e. Execute any other tasks or responsibilities assigned to him by the Committee’s 

Chairman or any of its members.  
 
Committee Term & Resignation 

 

The term of the Committee shall be in line with the term of the General Assembly/Board of Directors 

of Nayifat.  
 Audit Committee members can resign by informing the Chairman of the Committee as well as the 

Chairman of the Board in writing. The resignation will be effective with immediate effect 
unless a specific date is specified in the resignation letter. Upon the resignation of a 
Committee member, the General Assembly will appoint a new member to the Committee. 

 
Independence  

 
The Audit Committee member shall not have any significant contractual or business relationship with  
the Company that could be seen to materially impair his capacity to act in an independent manner. 
 
Members Orientation 
 
New Audit Committee members will be provided with an orientation program which will include 
presentations by executive management on the Company’s strategic plans, its significant financial, 
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accounting and risk management issues, its legal affairs, its compliance programs, its operations, its 
Code of Conduct, its management structure, its key policies, practices, executive officers and its 
internal and external auditors. In addition, each incoming members will be provided with copies of 
Nayifat’s Articles of Incorporation, the executive summary of the corporate plan, previous internal 
audit reports, internal audit plans and other appropriate information. 
 
Meetings & Procedures 

 
 The Audit Committee shall meet at least quarterly or more as needed to conduct its duties. 

Meetings can be in person or through phone/video conference. Meeting invitations are sent one 
week in advance along with the meeting agenda and any other documents. 

 A member can’t elect another member of the Committee to act on his behalf and to vote in the 
meetings.  

 The Committee will approve its yearly meeting schedule at the first meeting of each year. At the 
end of each meeting, the attendees appoint the time for next meeting.  

 The Committee Members may approve via email circulations. 
 The presence of the majority of members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum.  
 All determinations of the Committee shall be made by majority voting of members present at a 

meeting duly called and held.  
 The Chairman shall have a casting vote in case of an equality of votes. 
 The Chief Financial Officer (CFO), the Head of Internal Audit and a representative of the external 

auditors shall attend meetings of the Audit Committee at which issues relating to accounts and 
audit are discussed, but only at the invitation of the Committee through its Chairman.  

 The Committee shall keep written minutes of its meetings as detailed in this document “Minutes 
of Meetings”.  

 
Authority 

 
The Committee shall have the access to resources and information necessary for it to discharge its 
duties and responsibilities. 
 
 Minutes of Meetings 

 
 The deliberations and resolutions of the Audit Committee will be recorded in minutes. Such 

minutes will be kept with the Board of Directors’ records. These minutes will be provided to the 
Committee members after the approval of all Committee members who attended the meeting.  

 The Committee’s meetings will be documented as follows: 

a. Important discussions held in the meetings and their related decisions and recommendations 
shall be documented by the Committee’s secretary. 

b. The minutes shall specify the date and the place of meeting, the name of attendees and 
absentees, summary of discussions held in the meeting and their related decisions and 
recommendations shall be recorded.  

c. The draft minutes shall be prepared by the Committee’s Secretary within seven business days 
after each meeting and shall be sent to all Committee members for review. Any comments on 
the minutes from any of the Committee members shall be provided during a week from the 
draft’s receipt date. 

d. The Committee’s Secretary amends the draft minutes based on the members’ comments and 
sends it attached with these comments to the Chairman.  
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e. The Secretary of the Committee prepares the final minutes according to the Chairman’s 
recommendations and sends it to the Committee members duly signed by the Chairman and 
himself. 

f. If any of the members recommend/suggest a topic to be discussed in the next meeting for the 
Committee, he may ask the Committee’s Secretary to include it in the next meeting’s agenda 
as one of the main subjects. The next meeting’s agenda will be then decided by the 
Committee’s Chairman. 

g. The signed copy of the minutes shall be kept attached with its related documents and 
correspondence in a special file.  

 
Reporting Responsibilities 

 
 In line with the Circular dated 10/04/2018; 24/07/ 1439 Number (403) issued by the Council of 

Ministries regarding amendment of Article Number (104) of MoCI guidelines the Audit Committee 
shall: 

a. Prepare an official report with regards to Capital Adequacy of, matters, discussions 
and resolutions of the meeting.  

b. ensure that the report is available to General Assembly at least 21 days before the 
General Assembly meeting  

c. ensure that the report is read at the General Assembly in which multiple copies of the 
Audit Committee Report should be circulated and available in the Company's Head 
Office for discussion in the General Assembly meeting  

 The Committee shall also prepare an annual report concerning the number of meetings held 
during the year along with number of meetings attended by each member. 

 After each Committee meeting, the Chairman is responsible for submission to the Board of 
Directors, an official report regarding the matters, discussions including Compliance quarterly 
report and resolutions of the meeting.  

 

3.5.2 Roles & Responsibilities of Audit Committee 

 

 The Members shall make every effort to attend all Committee meetings and to effectively 

participate in discussions. The members shall inform the Chairman in writing in case of their 

absence. 

 The members shall maintain the Company’s secrets gained through performing their duties and 

shall not publicize confidential information to shareholders out of the General Assembly or to any 

other party. In such cases, the member shall be dismissed from the Committee and can be held 

responsible for the financial damages caused. 

 The members of the Audit Committee shall not execute any executive job in the Company. 

 The members shall carry on good performance in executing their duties and responsibilities, and 

shall be updated in their domain in the interests of the Company. 

 The members shall be honest, truthful, objective and independent in performing their work. 

 The members shall not participate in any occupations that can violate the Code of Conduct & 

Ethics of the Company or its principles. 

 The members shall not accept any occupations that are liable to give rise to conflicts of interest 

with the Company, and those which may prevent them from executing their duties objectively. 

 The members are required to disclose all personal operations and their nature that are executed 

with the Company, and any personal relation with the Board of Directors and the Executive 

Management. 

 Overseeing the Company's Internal Audit Function to ensure efficiency in performing its activities 
and tasks assigned by the General Assembly/Board. 
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 Reviewing the internal audit plan and procedures including the Committee’s opinions and 
recommendations. 

 Reviewing internal audit reports and pursuing corrective procedures for the weaknesses 
identified. 

 Recommending to the General Assembly, the appointment or termination of the External Auditors 
and determining their fees, taking into consideration their independence upon recommendation. 

 Following up on the External Auditors activities and approving any activities beyond the audit’s 
scope of work assigned to them during the performance of their duties. 

 Reviewing the audit plan with the External Auditor and commenting on it. 

 Reviewing auditor's notes on the financial statements and following up actions taken in this 
regard. 

 Reviewing the interim and annual financial statements before presenting them to the General 
Assembly /Board and providing opinion and recommendations on them. 

 Reviewing adopted accounting policies and providing opinion and recommendations to the Board. 

 Have the power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within the Committee’s 
scope of responsibilities. The Committee shall have unrestricted access to members of 
management and all information relevant to its responsibilities. The Committee shall be 
empowered to retain independent counsel, accountants, or others to provide assistance in the 
conduct of any investigation. 

 Perform such other functions assigned by the Company’s Articles of Incorporation or the Board of 
Directors. 

 The Committee shall prepare, at least three months prior to yearend, an annual plan and schedule 
of the Committee activities for the coming year. 

 The Committee shall discuss and review its performance at least annually to determine whether 
it is functioning effectively and agree actions on how they can improve their performance. A report 
on the Committee’s performance shall be submitted to the Board of Directors. 

 The Committee shall estimate and recommend the funding needed by the Committee for payment 
of: 

 Fees to any consultants employed by the Committee; and  

 Ordinary administrative expenses of the Committee that are necessary or appropriate in carrying 
out its duties. 

 The Committee may call such additional meetings as the Chairman considers necessary for the 
Committee to fulfill its duties. The Secretary to the Committee shall be responsible, in conjunction 
with the Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and circulating it to Committee members prior to 
each meeting. 

 The Committee may follow up the results of previous meetings and outstanding matters. 
 
Internal Controls and Internal Audit Risk Assessment 

 
 For the purpose of carrying out internal audit work and preparation of Internal Audit Plan, the 

Committee shall review the internal audit risk assessment to decide on the effectiveness of 
internal audit plan.  

 The Committee shall consider and review with management, the External Auditors and the 
Head of Internal Audit: 

a. The effectiveness of, or weaknesses in, the Company’s internal controls, the overall 
control environment, accounting and financial controls. 

b. Any related significant findings and recommendations of the External Auditors and 
internal audit function together with management’s responses thereto, including the 
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timetable for implementation of recommendations to correct weaknesses in internal 
controls. 

 The Committee shall review with the Head of Internal Audit and the External Auditors the 
coordination of audit efforts to ensure complete coverage of key business controls and high 
risk areas, improve efficiency and the effective use of audit resources. 

 The Committee shall discuss with management, Head of Internal Audit, and External Auditors, 
management’s process for assessing the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting including any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses identified.  

 The Committee shall review the Company’s compliance, AML and ethics programs, including 
consideration of legal and regulatory requirements and shall review with management its 
periodic evaluation of the effectiveness of such programs.  

 The Committee shall assess internal Risk Management processes for determining and managing 
key financial statement risk areas.  

 The Committee shall establish procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of 
complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or 
auditing matters, and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns 
regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters, if any.  

 The Committee shall review any Fraud related cases identified by Senior Management and 
adhere to SAMA Anti-Fraud Rules. 

  
Information Technology Systems Controls 

 
 The Committee shall consider and review with management, the External Auditors and the 

Head of Internal Audit: 

 The effectiveness of, or weaknesses in, the Company’s computerized information system 
controls and security. 

 Any related significant findings and recommendations of the External Auditors and Internal 
Audit Department together with management’s responses thereto, including the timetable 
for implementation of recommendations to correct weaknesses in systems controls, including 
any significant risks related thereto and major controls over such activities.  

 The status and adequacy of management information systems and other information 
technology. 

 The Committee shall review with the Head of Internal Audit and the External Auditors the 
coordination of the audit effort to ensure complete coverage of key system controls and risk 
areas related to IT controls. 

  
Financial Reporting 

 
 The Committee shall review published documents including Board’s Annual Report to the 

General Assembly containing the Company’s financial statements, including annual and 
interim reports, press releases, related to financial results and statutory filings and consider 
whether the information contained in these documents is consistent with the information 
contained in the financial statements. 

 The Committee shall ensure that Company generated financial statements are fairly stated 
and in accordance with the applicable accounting standards issued by Saudi Organization for 
Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA”). 

 The Committee shall review the Company’s accounting policies and provide 
recommendations to the Board. 

 The Committee shall review and discuss the annual audited financial statements and the 
results of External Audit prior to the Annual General Assembly Meeting of the Shareholders 
and prior to filing of the Company’s Annual Report. Also, the Committee shall discuss the 
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results of the annual audit and any matters required to be communicated to the Committee 
by External Auditors under the Ministry of Commerce and Industry rules. 

 The Committee’s review of the financial statements shall include:  

 The Company’s annual financial statements and related footnotes. 

 Any significant changes required in the external auditor’s audit plan. 

 Any serious difficulties or disputes with management encountered during the course of the 
external or internal audits. 

 The significant estimates and judgments underlying the financial statements, including the 
rationale behind those estimates as well as the details on material accruals and reserves. 

 Major issues regarding accounting principles and financial statement presentations, including 
any significant changes in the Company’s selection or application of accounting principles, and 
issues related to the adequacy of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and 
any specific remedial actions adopted in light of significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses.  

 Discussion with management and External Auditors on significant financial reporting issues 
and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the financial statements and the 
reasonableness of those judgments.  

 Consideration of the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as well as off-balance 
sheet structures, on the financial statements. 

 Consideration of the judgment of both management and External Auditors about the quality, 
not just the acceptability of accounting principles.  

 The clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements. 
 The Committee shall discuss with External Auditors, prior to the Annual General Assembly 

Meeting of the Shareholders and filing of the Company’s Annual Report, all critical accounting 
policies and practices of the Company, all material alternative treatments of financial 
information within generally accepted accounting principles that have been discussed with 
management, including the implications of the use of such alternative treatments and 
disclosures and the treatment preferred by External Auditors. 

 The Committee shall review all related party transactions required to be disclosed, the 
business rationale for the transactions and whether appropriate disclosures have been made 
in the financial statements of the Company.  

 The Committee shall discuss with management, Head of Internal Audit, and External Auditors 
any changes in internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected or are 
reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
that are required to be disclosed and also any other changes in internal control over financial 
reporting that were considered for disclosure in the Company’s periodic filings and corrected 
by the Company. 

 In meeting its responsibilities, Audit Committee shall: 

 Meet with the Company’s Head of Internal Audit, the External Auditors, and management in 
separate sessions to discuss any matters that the Committee or these parties believe should 
be discussed privately with the Audit Committee. 

 Review all written communications made by the management of the Company to the Ministry 
of Commerce and Industry, Saudi Central Bank and Capital Market Authority regarding the 
Company’s financial statements, compliance with laws and regulations and the fair 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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 External Audit 
 

 In appointing an external auditor for the Company, the Company and the Audit Committee 
shall comply with the related guidelines issued by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry 
(MoCI). 

 An invitation for external audit proposals should be requested from the firms short-listed by 
the Audit Committee. A formal documented evaluation of the auditors included in the short-
list should be carried out by the Head of Internal Audit and CFO which is agreed with the 
MD/CEO. The evaluation should take into account specific industry expertise, size of the audit 
firm, other similar audits, the value that could be added as well as the fees. The evaluation 
and management’s recommendation shall be submitted to the Audit Committee for review. 
The Committee’s recommendations will be subject to the Board’s approval and the Annual 
General Meeting’s ratification. 

 In relation to the External Auditor, the Committee shall: 

a. Recommend a frequency for change/rotation of External Auditors on a periodic basis. 

b. Review the scope and approach of the annual audit with the External Auditors. The 
Committee shall discuss with the Internal Audit Department and the External Auditors 
the overall scope and plans for their respective audits, including the adequacy of staffing 
and budget of the Internal Audit Function.  

c. Assess the External Auditors’ procedures for identifying and responding to key audit and 
internal control risks. 

d. Confirm and ensure the independence of External Auditors, including a review of the 
nature of all services and related fees provided by the External Auditors. At least 
annually, the Committee shall obtain and review a report by the External Auditors 
describing all relationships between the External Auditors and the Company, members 
of Board of Directors and Senior Management (to assess the auditors’ independence).  

e. The Committee shall pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by the 
External Auditors, including specific pre-approval of internal control-related services, 
and shall not engage the External Auditors to perform non-audit services prohibited by 
law or regulation. 

f. Consider, review and follow-up with management any findings raised as part of the 
external auditor’s management letter, and management’s response thereto, including 
timetable for implementation of any recommendations. 

g. The Committee shall be directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, 
retention, and oversight of the work of the External Auditors (including resolution of 
disagreements between management and external auditor regarding financial reporting 
and internal control-related matters) for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit 
report or performing other audit, review, or attest services for the Company.  

h. After reviewing the foregoing report and the External Auditors’ work throughout the 
year, the Committee shall evaluate and report on the External Auditors’ qualifications, 
performance and independence. Such evaluation should include the review and 
evaluation of the lead audit partner and take into account the opinions of management 
and the Company’s executives. 

i. The Committee shall regularly review with the External Auditors any audit problems or 
difficulties encountered during the course of the audit work, including any restrictions 
on the scope of the External Auditors’ activities or access to requested information, and 
management’s response. The Committee should review any accounting adjustments 
that were noted or proposed by the auditors but were not recorded in the books of the 
Company and not reflected in the financial statements of the relevant period, based on 
materiality or otherwise.  
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j. Provided that at least once a year, the Audit Committee may at the request of the 
Committee’s members meet the external auditors without the CFO being present.  

 
Internal Audit 
 
 The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include overseeing the Company's Internal Audit function 

to ensure efficiency in performing its activities and tasks assigned by the Board. In fulfilling this 
responsibility, the Committee shall: 

a. Evaluate the internal audit procedures for establishing the annual internal audit plan. 

b. Review, the internal audit scope, internal audit risk assessment and nature of the 
internal audit plan and any subsequent changes, including whether or not the internal 
audit’ plan is sufficiently linked to the Company’s overall business objectives and 
management’s success and risk factors.  

c. The Audit Committee and the Head of Internal Audit should discuss internal audit reports 
and management’s actions related to the internal audit reports.  

d. The Audit Committee shall review and discuss all the follow-up reports of the internal 
audit as well as the status of all the significant points/observations in the internal audit 
report. 

e. The Committee shall review and discuss with the Board of Directors, the Internal Audit 
Department’s budget and staffing. 

f. The Committee shall review and concur in the appointment, remuneration, appraisal, 
replacement, reassignment, or dismissal of the Head of Internal Audit, and his staff. 

g. The Committee shall confirm and ensure the independence of the Head of Internal Audit 
as per Article 20 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations. 

h. The Committee shall receive reports from the Head of Internal Audit and approve any 
changes to the annual internal audit plan. The Chairman of the Committee shall meet 
with the Head of Internal Audit, when required, to discuss issues requiring Committee’s 
attention. 

i. The Audit Committee shall meet the Head of Internal Audit and other members of the 
internal audit Department without the CFO and the External Auditors being present, to 
discuss the performance of audit department and access to all required information, 
documents and manuals of the Company. 

j. The Committee shall consider and review with Internal Audit function: 

1. Significant findings reported by the Internal Audit Department during the year and 
management’s responses thereto, including the timetable for implementation of 
the recommendations to correct weaknesses identified. 

2. Any difficulties encountered in the course of the internal audits, including any 
restrictions on the scope of the work or access to required information. 

3. Any changes required in the planned scope of the audit plan. 

4. The internal audit manual. 

5. The annual Internal Audit was performed in accordance with the audit plan 
approved by the Audit Committee in their previous meetings. 

6. Follow up, with the Head of Internal Audit, management actions regarding 
unresolved audit issues raised by the Internal, External Auditors or other 
supervisory entities during the year. 

7. Review the internal audit plan for coming year.  

8. Other matters that should be discussed such as special investigations as well as 
Internal Audit Department’s staff requirements, professional development of the 
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internal audit staff, administrative support to the Department, and the Internal 
Audit Function responsibilities. 

 
 Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

 
 The Committee shall review with the Head of Internal Audit and the External Auditors the results 

of their review of the Company’s monitoring of compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct 
& Ethics.  

 The Committee shall review the quarterly Compliance Report with the Head of Compliance and 
AML and discuss the results of their review.  

 The Committee shall insure the effectiveness of the Company’s procedures in identifying legal and 
non-compliance risks. 

 The Committee shall review the organizational, legal, Zakat & tax matters that affect the 
company’s businesses, its financial statements and its compliance policy. 

 The Committee shall review the scope and status of systems designed to promote Company 
compliance with laws, regulations, internal procedures and the Code of Conduct & Ethics through 
review of reports from Internal Audit Department and third parties as determined by the Audit 
Committee. 
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3.6 Risk Committee 

 The Board of Directors of Nayifat remains determined in its endeavor to at least meet, the CMA 

requirements. Accordingly, and to ensure the leading practice of governance to protect the 

shareholders and stakeholders rights, Nayifat has formed a Risk Committee and prepared this 

Risk Committee Charter.  

 This Risk Committee Charter details the scope of the Risk Committee’s responsibilities and how 

it carries out those responsibilities, including its structure, process and membership 

requirements. 

 The Board shall annually evaluate the Committee's performance and make recommendations 

to enhance the performance or change the members of the Committee.  

 

3.6.1 Organization & Meetings of Risk Committee 
 

Composition 
 
 The Board of Directors shall appoint a Risk Committee of at least three members of the Board or 

independent professionals who are not Board members as per Article 20 of CMA Corporate 
Governance Regulations. Chairman and majority of its members shall be Non-Executive Directors. 
The members of that committee shall possess an adequate level of knowledge in risk 
management, Information Technology, Cyber Security and finance. 

 It is preferable that the number of Nayifat Risk Committee members may not exceed 5 members.  
 Each Committee member will be both independent and financially literate, or become financially 

literate within a reasonable period of time. At least one of the Committee members shall be 
specialist in financial and accounting matters.  

 No Committee member shall simultaneously serve on the Risk Committee of a competitor of 
Nayifat. 

 Neither the Chairman of the Board nor the Chairman of the Executive Committee or the CEO shall 
chair the Risk Committee. 

 In the absence of the Committee Chairman, the remaining present members shall elect one 
amongst themselves to chair the meeting.  

 The Committee may submit approvals via circulations 
 

The Chairman  

 
 The Chairman of the Risk Committee represents the Committee in the Board of Directors’ 

meetings and to any other party. The Chairman can be assigned by the Board of Directors 
based on the Board members’ recommendation, or such appointment can be delegated to 
the Committee.  

 The Chairman organizes the Committee’s meetings, determines Risk Committee meetings’ 
agenda and shall have access to all Company’s information, records and he can meet with any 
member of the Company’s management as required. The Chairman also sets up the 
Committee’s procedures in line with this Charter to facilitate the fulfillment of the Committee 
duties 

 The Chairman of the Risk Committee should approve on a quarterly basis the Risk Report. 
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Secretary 

 
 A secretary can be assigned by the Committee. He can be one of the Committee’s members or a 

non-Committee member and he can be from outside the Board of Directors. If the secretary is not 
a Committee member, he will attend the Committee meetings without having any voting rights. 

 The secretary is responsible for the following: 
f. keeping complete records of the Committee’s meetings for the purpose of issuing 

reports about the performance of the Committee to the Board of Directors; 
g. circulating the Committee resolutions to the concerned parties; 
h. coordinating with concerned Divisions regarding Committee resolution that 

necessitate legal compliance and regulatory procedures; 
i. establishing a mechanism for tracking and following-up the Committee resolutions; 

and  
j. Execute any other tasks or responsibilities assigned to him by the Committee’s 

Chairman or any of its members.  
 

Committee Term & Resignation 

 
 The term of the Committee shall be in line with the term of the Board of Directors of Nayifat.  
 Risk Committee members can resign by informing the Chairman of the Committee as well as the 

Chairman of the Board in writing. The resignation will be effective with immediate effect unless a 
specific date is specified in the resignation letter. Upon the resignation of a Committee member, 
the Board of Directors will appoint a new member to the Committee. 

 

Independence  

 
The Risk Committee member shall not have any significant contractual or business relationship 
with the Company that could be seen to materially impair his capacity to act in an independent 
manner. 

 

Members Orientation 
 
New Risk Committee members will be provided with an orientation program which will include 
presentations by executive management on the Company’s strategic plans, its significant financial, 
accounting and risk management issues, its legal affairs, its compliance programs, its operations, its 
Code of Conduct, its management structure, its key policies, practices, executive officers and its 
internal and external auditors. In addition, each incoming members will be provided with copies of 
Nayifat’s Articles of Incorporation, the executive summary of the corporate planed other appropriate 
information. 

 

Remuneration of the Committee 

 
 Each member of the Committee is entitled to the below compensation: 

 An attendance payment for each meeting attended by the Committee member and  

 An annual remuneration paid to Board members in line with the Company’s Article 21 of 

Incorporations and Numeration and Remuneration Charter. Members from outside the Board 

are entitled for an annual membership fees as approved by the Board. 

 Board of Directors reports presented to the General Assembly will disclose the remunerations 

and other payments made to the Committee members. 
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Meetings & Procedures 

 
 The Risk Committee shall meet at least quarterly or more as needed to conduct its duties. 

Meetings can be in person or through phone/video conference. Meeting invitations are sent one 
week in advance along with the meeting agenda and any other documents. 

 
 A member can’t elect another member of the Committee to act on his behalf and to vote in the 

meetings.  
 The Committee will approve its yearly meeting schedule at the first meeting of each year. At the 

end of each meeting, the attendees appoint the time for next meeting.  
 The presence of the majority of members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum.  
 All determinations of the Committee shall be made by majority voting of members present at a 

meeting duly called and held.  
 The Chairman shall have a casting vote in case of an equality of votes. 
 The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) shall attend meetings of the Risk Committee at which issues relating 

to Risk Management, but only at the invitation of the Committee through its Chairman.  
 The Committee shall keep written minutes of its meetings as detailed in this document under 

“Minutes of Meetings”.  
 

Authority 

 
The Committee shall have the access to resources and information necessary for it to discharge its 
duties and responsibilities.  

 

Minutes of Meetings 

 
The deliberations and resolutions of the Risk Committee will be recorded in minutes. Such minutes 
will be kept with the Board of Directors’ records. These minutes will be provided to the Committee 
members after the approval of all Committee members who attended the meeting.  

The Committee’s meetings will be documented as follows: 

a. Important discussions held in the meetings and their related decisions and 
recommendations shall be documented by the Committee’s secretary. 

b. The minutes shall specify the date and the place of meeting, the name of attendees 
and absentees, summary of discussions held in the meeting and their related decisions 
and recommendations shall be recorded.  

c. The draft minutes shall be prepared by the Committee’s Secretary within seven 
business days after each meeting and shall be sent to all Committee members for 
review. Any comments on the minutes from any of the Committee members shall be 
provided during a week from the draft’s receipt date. 

d. The Committee’s Secretary amends the draft minutes based on the members’ 
comments and sends it attached with these comments to the Chairman.  

e. The Secretary of the Committee prepares the final minutes according to the 
Chairman’s recommendations and sends it to the Committee members duly signed by 
the Chairman and himself. 

f. If any of the members recommend/suggest a topic to be discussed in the next meeting 
for the Committee, he may ask the Committee’s Secretary to include it in the next 
meeting’s agenda as one of the main subjects. The next meeting’s agenda will be then 
decided by the Committee’s Chairman as per 3.2.2. 
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g. The signed copy of the minutes shall be kept attached with its related documents and 
correspondence in a special file.  

 

Reporting Responsibilities 

 
 After each Committee meeting, the Chairman is responsible for submission to the Board of 

Directors, an official report regarding the matters, discussions and resolutions of the meeting. 
 The Committee shall also prepare an annual report concerning the number of meetings held 

during the year along with number of meetings attended by each member. 

 

3.6.2 Roles & Responsibilities of the Risk Committee  

 
 The Members shall make every effort to attend all Committee meetings and to effectively 

participate in discussions. The members shall inform the Chairman in writing in case of their 

absence. 

 The members shall maintain the Company’s secrets gained through performing their duties and 

shall not publicize confidential information to shareholders out of the General Assembly or to any 

other party. In such cases, the member shall be dismissed from the Committee and can be held 

responsible for the financial damages caused. 

 The members of the Risk Committee shall not execute any executive job in the Company. 

 The members shall carry on good performance in executing their duties and responsibilities, and 

shall be updated in their domain in the interests of the Company. 

 The members shall be honest, truthful, objective and independent in performing their work. 

 The members shall not participate in any occupations that can violate the Code of Conduct & 

Ethics of the Company or its principles. 

 The members shall not accept any occupations that are liable to give rise to conflicts of interest 

with the Company, and those which may prevent them from executing their duties objectively. 

 The members are required to disclose all personal operations and their nature that are executed 

with the Company, and any personal relation with the Board of Directors and the Executive 

Management. 

 Overseeing the Company's Risk Management to ensure efficiency in performing its activities and 

tasks assigned by the Board. 

 The members shall:  

 Oversee the risk management function within the company. The Committee shall ensure that a 

Quarterly Risk Report is approved and submitted to SAMA pursuant to Articles 39 & 40 of the 

Implementing Regulations of Finance Companies Control Law and that Article 71 of the CMA 

Corporate Governance Regulations is adhered to.  

 Oversee the risk management framework that includes the Market, Credit and Operational Risk.  

 Issue directives on effective Risk Management within the Company  

 Review on a quarterly basis the Risk Appetite statement.  

 Review & Recommend Risk Appetite Statement & Risk Strategy 

 Reviewing the Risk management policies and procedures including the Committee’s opinions and 
recommendations. Approving the Risk Management Policies and Procedures. 

 Review and approving Operation Risk Assessment plan  

 Annual review of Stress Testing 

 Assess risk exposures of Nayifat Finance Company. 

 In meeting its responsibilities, the Risk Committee shall: 
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a. Have the power to conduct or authorize fraud investigations into any matters within 
the Committee’s scope of responsibilities. The Committee shall have unrestricted 
access to members of management and all information relevant to its responsibilities. 
The Committee shall be empowered to retain independent counsel, accountants, or 
others to provide assistance in the conduct of any investigation. 

b. Report Committee actions to the Board of Directors with such recommendations as 
the Committee may deem appropriate. 

c. Perform such other functions assigned by the Company’s Articles of Incorporation or 
the Board of Directors. 

d. Prepare, at least three months prior to yearend, an annual plan and schedule of the 
Committee activities for the coming year. 

e. Discuss and review its performance at least annually to determine whether it is 
functioning effectively and agree actions on how they can improve their performance. 
A report on the Committee’s performance shall be submitted to the Board of 
Directors. 

f. estimate and recommend the funding needed by the Committee for payment of: 

i. Fees to any consultants employed by the Committee; and  

ii. Ordinary administrative expenses of the Committee that are necessary or 
appropriate in carrying out its duties. 

g. May call such additional meetings as the Chairman considers necessary for the 
Committee to fulfil its duties. The Secretary to the Committee shall be responsible, in 
conjunction with the Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and circulating it to 
Committee members prior to each meeting. 

h. The Committee may follow up the results of previous meetings and outstanding 
matters. 

 

Internal Controls and Risk Assessment 

 
 For the purpose of carrying out Risk Management and preparation of Operational Risk Plan, the 

Committee shall review the Risk assessment to decide on the effectiveness of internal Risk 
Assessment plan.  

c. The Committee shall consider and review with management and Chief Risk Officer The 
effectiveness of, or weaknesses in, the Company’s internal controls, the overall control 
environment. 

d. Any related significant findings and recommendations of the Risk Management Function. 

 
 The Committee shall review with the Chief Risk Officer the efforts to ensure complete coverage 

of key business controls and high risk areas, improve efficiency and the effective use of Risk 
Management. 

 

Risk Management 

 
The Risk Committee’s responsibilities include overseeing the Company's Risk Management function 
to ensure efficiency in performing its activities and tasks assigned by the Board. In fulfilling this 
responsibility, the Committee shall: 

 Evaluate the risk management procedures for establishing the operational risk plan. 
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 Review, the scope of the risk assessment and nature of the plan and any subsequent 
changes, including whether or not the plan is sufficiently linked to the Company’s overall 
business objectives and management’s success and risk factors.  

 Discuss with the Chief Risk Officer the SAMA Quarterly Risk Report.  

 Review and discuss with the Board of Directors, the Risk Division’s budget and staffing. 

 Review and concur in the appointment, remuneration, appraisal, replacement, 
reassignment, or dismissal of the Chief Risk Officer, and his staff. 

 Confirm and ensure the independence of the Chief Risk Officer as per Article 20 of CMA 
Corporate Governance Regulations. 

 Meet with the Chief Risk Officer, when required, to discuss issues requiring Committee’s 
attention. 

 

Compliance with Law and regulation 

 
 The Committee shall insure the effectiveness of the Company’s procedures in identifying legal and 

non-compliance risks. 
 The Committee shall review the scope and status of systems designed to promote Company Risk 

Management compliance with laws, regulations, internal procedures and the Code of Conduct & 
Ethics through review of Operational Risk Management Register and third parties as determined 
by the Risk Committee. 
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3.7 Strategic Committee  

 The Board has the overall responsibility for Nayifat. However, the Board has delegated some of its 

responsibilities to its committees and the Company’s executives.  

 The Strategic Committee shall be to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities 

relating to long-term strategy for the Company, risks and opportunities relating to such strategy, 

and strategic decisions regarding investments, acquisitions and divestitures by the Company. 

Thus, the purpose and function of the Strategic Committee is one of oversight of the Company’s 

long-term Strategic development and implementation 

 

Composition 
 
The Strategic Committee shall be comprised of at least three directors, at least of whom one member 
shall be independent. Members shall be appointed by the Board.  

 

The Chairman  

 
The Chairman of the Strategic Committee represents the Committee in the Board of Directors’ 
meetings and to any other party.  
The Chairman organizes the Committee’s meetings, determines Strategic Committee meetings’ 
agenda and shall have access to all Company’s information, records and he can meet with any member 
of the Company’s management as required. The Chairman also sets up the Committee’s procedures 
in line with this Charter to facilitate the fulfillment of the Committee duties. 
 

Secretary 

 
A secretary can be assigned by the Committee. He can be one of the Committee’s members or a non-
Committee member and he can be from outside the Board of Directors. If the secretary is not a 
Committee member, he will attend the Committee meetings without having any voting rights. 

 
The secretary is responsible for the following: 

 

 keeping complete records of the Committee’s meetings for the purpose of issuing 
reports about the performance of the Committee to the Board of Directors; 

 circulating the Committee resolutions to the concerned parties; 

 coordinating with concerned departments regarding Committee resolution that 
necessitate legal compliance and regulatory procedures; 

 establishing a mechanism for tracking and following-up the Committee resolutions; and  

 execute any other tasks or responsibilities assigned to him by the Committee’s Chairman 
or any of its members.  

 

Committee Term & Resignation 

 
The term of the Committee shall be in line with the term of the Board of Directors of Nayifat.  

 
Strategic Committee members can resign by informing the Chairman of the Committee as well as the 
Board in writing. The resignation will be effective with immediate effect unless a specific date is 
specified in the resignation letter. Upon the resignation of a Committee member, the Board of 
Directors will appoint a new member to the Committee. 
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Remuneration of the Committee 

 
Each member of the Committee is entitled to the below compensation: 

 
An attendance payment for each meeting attended by the Committee member and An annual 
remuneration paid to Board members in line with Article 23 of the Company’s Bylaws. Members from 
outside the Board are entitled for an annual membership fees as approved by the Board. The Board 
may assign additional compensation in line with the CG. 

 
Committee members who are resident outside Riyadh are entitled to all out of pocket expenses 
incurred by them to attend the meeting. Such expenses include a first class ticket (back and forth) 
from his place of residence to the Company’s head office or to the place where the meeting is held as 
well as any accommodation and transportation expenses incurred by them.  
 
Board of Directors reports presented to the General Assembly will disclose the remunerations and 
other payments made to the Committee members. 

 

3.7.1 Meetings & Procedures 

 
The Strategic Committee shall meet as frequently as needed. 
The Committee shall keep written minutes of its meetings as detailed in this document under section 
3.10 “Minutes of Meetings”.  

 

Authority 

 
The Committee shall have the access to resources and information necessary for it to discharge its 
duties and responsibilities. 

 

Minutes of Meetings 

 
The deliberations and resolutions of the Strategic Committee will be recorded in minutes. Such 
minutes will be kept with the Board of Directors’ records. These minutes will be provided to the 
Committee members after the approval of all Committee members who attended the meeting.  

 

The Committee’s meetings will be documented as follows: 

 
Important discussions held in the meetings and their related decisions and recommendations shall be 
documented by the Committee’s secretary. 
The minutes shall specify the date and the place of meeting, the name of attendees and absentees, 
summary of discussions held in the meeting and their related decisions and recommendations shall 
be recorded.  
The draft minutes shall be prepared by the Committee’s Secretary within seven business days after 
each meeting and shall be sent to all Committee members for review. Any comments on the minutes 
from any of the Committee members shall be provided during a week from the draft’s receipt date. 
The Committee’s Secretary amends the draft minutes based on the members’ comments and sends it 
attached with these comments to the Chairman.  
The Secretary of the Committee prepares the final minutes according to the Chairman’s 
recommendations and sends it to the Committee members duly signed by the Chairman and himself. 
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If any of the members recommend/suggest a topic to be discussed in the next meeting for the 
Committee, he may ask the Committee’s Secretary to include it in the next meeting’s agenda as one 
of the main subjects. The next meeting’s agenda will be then decided by the Committee’s Chairman  
The signed copy of the minutes shall be kept attached with its related documents and correspondence 
in a special file.  

 

3.7.2 Responsibilities & Duties  

 
The Members shall make every effort to attend all Committee meetings and to effectively participate 
in discussions. The members shall inform the Chairman in writing in case of their absence. 
The members shall maintain the Company’s secrets gained through performing their duties and shall 
not publicize confidential information to shareholders out of the General Assembly or to any other 
party. In such cases, the member shall be dismissed from the Committee and can be held responsible 
for the financial damages caused. 
The Strategic Committee shall be to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating 
to long-term strategy for the Company, risks and opportunities relating to such strategy, and strategic 
decisions regarding investments, acquisitions and divestitures by the Company. Thus, the purpose and 
function of the Strategic Committee is one of oversight of the Company’s long-term Strategic 
development and implementation 
The Strategic Committee will Coordinate with relevant Committees to ensure that Strategic of the 
Company are implemented 

 
The following principal responsibilities of the Strategic Committee are set forth as a guide with the 
understanding that the Strategic Committee may alter or supplement them as appropriate to the 
extent permitted by applicable laws and as circumstances may require. 

 

The Committee will coordinate the following: 

 
o Closely Work with the Chief Executive Officer and the executive officers to oversee the 

development of the Company’s strategy, and to provide guidance for the strategic planning 
process to ensure that the strategic implementation plan is developed, adhered to and 
imbedded in the organization. 

o Review risks and opportunities of the strategy as identified by the Company’s strategic risk 
assessment and other processes, and the impact of emerging or evolving competitive activity, 
governmental or legislative developments and global economic conditions. 

o Monitor the Company’s progress against strategic goals and provide feedback and advice on 
merger and acquisition strategy, capital strategy, market capabilities, and resource 
requirements. 

o Closely Work and the executive officers to oversee the development of an acquisition strategy 
that aligns with the Company’s long term strategy and that is holistic in identifying acquisitions 
while evaluating the related impact on remaining targets and competitors. Develop a process 
for monitoring how and when various decision points regarding large acquisitions are made, 
the execution of transactions, and post–acquisition implementation, integration and 
monitoring of various specified criteria, including the realization of synergies. 

o As part of its responsibility for reviewing the Company’s process for reviewing, recommending 
and approving acquisitions, recommend to the Board various levels of authority in the 
acquisition process. 

o Work with the CEO and the executive officers to oversee the review and recommendation to 
the Board of certain significant strategic decisions regarding the potential exit from existing 
lines of business and entry into new lines of business, acquisitions, joint ventures, investments 
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or dispositions of businesses and assets. 

o Evaluate post transaction audits to track performance against acquisition plan target 
indicators and the realization of synergies. 

o In carrying out its responsibilities, the Strategic Committee will draw on the expertise of the 
management and corporate staff and, when required or helpful, will work with management 
to hire outside advisors or experts to assist the Strategy Committee with its work 

o Review the adequacy of this Charter and recommend to the Board proposed changes from 
time to time as needed. 

o Annually conduct an evaluation of its performance. 

o Carry out such other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned to the Strategic Committee 
by the Chairman of the Board. 

 

The Following are the duties of the Strategic Committee: 

 

 The Committee shall discuss with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management, 

relevant Board Committees any matters that could reasonably be expected to have a material 

impact on the Company’s long-term strategies. 

 The Committee shall recommend for Board approval actions that address the Company’s strategic 

initiatives as deemed necessary  
 

Provision 

 

 The Board has the overall responsibility for managing the Company. However, the Board has 

delegated some of its responsibilities to its committees and the Company’s executives.  

 The Risk Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities with respect 

to the Company’s internal control functions. In addition, the Risk Committee shall be responsible 

for overseeing the accounting and financial reporting practices and compliance with legal and 

regulatory requirements for the Company.  

 The Risk Committee is responsible for evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the 

Company’s Internal Control System and Risk Management. The Company’s Risk Management 

Function reports directly to the Risk Committee and the Board of Directors. Administratively Risk 

Management Function reports to the MD/CEO.  

 To preserve the independence and authority of the Risk Management, the Company has followed 

the leading practices that the Chief Risk officer reports functionally to the Risk Committee and the 

Board of Directors. Reporting functionality means that the Risk Committee shall: 

a. Review and Recommend the Risk Committee Charter. 

b. Review and Recommend Risk Management Policies & Procedures. 

c. Review and Recommend the Risk Appetite Statement  

d. Approve the Operational Risk Assessment Plan. 

e. Receive and review communications from the Chief Risk Officer on the results of the 
Risk Management activities or other matters that the Risk Committee determines as 
necessary. 

f. Call meetings with the Chief Risk Officer without management present. 

g. Based on MD/CEO recommendations, the Risk Committee will Review and 
recommend the annual compensation, performance appraisal and salary adjustment 
of Chief Risk Officer in line with the Nayifat’s compensation and benefits policy. 
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h. Make appropriate inquiries of management and Chief Risk Offer to determine 
whether there is scope or budgetary limitations that impede the ability of the Risk 
Management Division to execute its responsibilities. 

i. Assess whether the strength and resources of the Risk Management Division is 
sufficient to carry out its duties unimpeded, and without compromise. 

Administrative reporting is the reporting relationship within organization’s management structure 
that facilitates the day-to-day operations of the Risk Management Function. The administrative 
reporting line of the Chief Risk Officer shall be to the Company’s MD/CEO to afford the Risk 
Management Function appropriate support to accomplish its day to day activities. This support shall 
include positioning the Function and the Chief Risk Officer in the organization’s structure in a manner 
that offers appropriate standing for the Division within the organization.  
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3.8 Sharia Committee  

The role of Sharia Committee 
 

Ensuring that all activities and businesses of the company are in compliance with the principles of 

Islamic law 

 

Composition 
 

The committee members and its chairman are selected and appointed by a decision of the Board - 

based on the recommendation of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee - after obtaining 

SAMA no-objection and the company can obtain the approval of the General Assembly to appoint the 

members of the committee, and the committee is formed according to the following: 

 The Sharia Committee shall be comprised of at least two members and no more than five from 

the well-known Sharia scholars and economists with knowledge of banking and Sharia rulings. 

 The member of the Sharia committee is not allowed to participate in more than five Sharia 

committees of finance companies. 
 Sharia Committee members can resign by informing the Chairman of the Committee as well as the 

Board in writing. The resignation will be effective with immediate effect unless a specific date is 
specified in the resignation letter. Upon the resignation of a Committee member, the Board of 
Directors will appoint a new member to the Committee. 

 In case of the position of a member of the committee becomes vacant before the end of his term, 

a replacement shall be appointed until the end of the mentioned period. 
 Committee members must be qualified to carry out the work entrusted to them, have a clear 

understanding of their duties and responsibilities, and have the ability to objectively exercise 
sound judgment.  

 The members collectively must possess various professional, practical and administrative skills, 
and appropriate legal and financial experiences, especially honesty, commitment and enjoyment 
of a high degree of good reputation, efficiency and responsibility  

 The effectiveness of the committee depends on the experience of the members and their ability 
to judge with a comprehensive perspective.  

 The qualifications of the member should include the following characteristics: 
o Efficiency: It is reflected in the level of education, training and skills, and the availability of 

experience of not less than three years in related fields. 
o Sharia and Financial Knowledge: Appropriate Sharia knowledge should be possessed in 

addition to the ability to read and understand financial statements and reports. 

 

Chairman 

The Chairman of the Sharia Committee shall be independent, according to the conditions of 

independence in Article 8/2 of the Sharia Governance Instructions issued by SAMA in May 2021. 

 

Secretary 

 
A secretary can be assigned by the Committee.  
It is required that he be adequately familiar with jurisprudence, economics and financial business. 
The Secretary responsibilities are as follows: 

 Preparing the committee’s agenda and coordination its meetings. 

 Receiving inquiries from the administration, branches or relevant authorities, and answering 

urgent inquiries for which there may be known answers within the framework of the committee’s 

objectives and approach. 
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 Providing the committee with all its needs as available. 

 Coordination with the company's management to ensure the implementation of the decisions and 

fatwas of the Sharia Committee 

 Documenting and preserving Sharia Committee’s decisions, fatwas, minutes of its meetings, and 

all the controls, procedures, directives and other actions issued by it. 
 

3.8.1 Meetings & Procedures 

 

 The committee meets at least six meetings annually to follow up its work, and whenever needed, 

at the invitation of its secretary. 

 The minimum quorum for holding the committee's meetings is the attendance of two members. 

 The decisions of the committee are issued by majority, and in case of disagreement, the opinion 

of the chairman is considered likely 
 

3.8.2 Sharia Committee responsibilities 

 

 Establishing the legal controls governing the company’s business. 

 Issuing decisions and fatwas related to the company's business. 

 Approving the products, and ensuring that its comply with the provisions and principles of Islamic 

Sharia 

 Approving the documents, records, contracts, and correspondence. 

 Review contract formulas, documents, and existing applications in the Company to consider the 

extent of compliance with Islamic law. 

 Review all products that the Company implement for the first time to demonstrate its compliance 

with the rules of Islamic law, and establish the basic principles for drafting its contracts and 

documents. 

 Inform the Board and recommend appropriate measures to remedy the situation if it is proven to 

the Committee that the company has engaged in financing activities that are not in accordance 

with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia. 

 Submit a comprehensive annual report to the Board, general assembly and SAMA shows the 

extent of compliance to the principles of the Islamic law through the transactions were reviewed. 

 Informing SAMA with cases in which the non-compliant business with the provisions and principles 

of Islamic Sharia are not dealt with effectively or adequately, or the company has not taken any 

corrective measures in this regard. 
 

Board Responsibilities 

 

 The Board is primarily responsible towards the financing business carried out by the company, and 

these actions are in accordance with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia in accordance 

with the decisions of the Committee. 

 Supervising the commitment of the company to the Sharia decisions issued by the committee and 

their implementation. 

 Ensuring the existence of an effective communication mechanism between the main company 

units that facilitate and enable these units to communicate with the management in matters 

related to the compatibility of financing business with the provisions and principles of Islamic 

Sharia in accordance with the decisions of the committee. 

 Evaluate the performance of the committee members based on the efficiency, knowledge, 

contribution and effectiveness indicator. 

 The committee is reported to Board directly. 
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 The Board approves all policies and procedures that regulate the work of the Committee and 

supervises their implementation. 

 

Management responsibilities 

 

 Determining legal issues and referring them to the committee to obtain its decision and provide 

it with the necessary information and disclosures at the appropriate time. 

 Follow-up and implementation of the Sharia decisions issued by the committee. 

 Ensuring the compliance of the company business with the provisions and principles of Islamic 

Sharia as stated in the decisions and recommendations of the Committee. 

 Inform the Board and the Committee about products suspected of non-compliance with the 

provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia through official reports and stop immediately if it is 

proven that these products do not comply with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia. 

 Spreading the culture of commitment to the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia and its 

adoption within the company and introducing the relevant employees to the financing products 

that are compatible with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia. 

 Develop financing products in accordance with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia. 

 

Sharia Supervision 

Sharia compliance 

 The task of Sharia compliance is to regularly evaluate the financing activities carried out by the 

company in order to ensure their compliance with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia. 

 The person in charge of the task of Sharia compliance must ensure the level of commitment of the 

company to the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia and the corrective measures to address 

cases of non-compliance. 

 This task can be entrusted to the Compliance Department, or the expertise of Sharia specialists at 

the company may be sought to carry out the tasks of Sharia compliance. 

 Nayifat may seek the assistance of a competent third party to carry out the tasks of Sharia 

compliance after notifying SAMA. 

 

Sharia Audit 

 The task of the Sharia audit is the independent review process to provide objective confirmation 

that improves the level of compliance of the financing business carried out by the company with 

the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia. 

 The person in charge of the Sharia audit shall conduct the audit at least once a year. 

 This task can be entrusted to the Audit Department, or the expertise of Sharia specialists at the 

company may be sought to carry out the tasks of Sharia compliance. 

 Nayifat may seek the assistance of a competent third party to carry out the tasks of Sharia Audit 

after notifying SAMA. 

 The results and observations of the Sharia audit must be submitted to both the Audit Committee 

and the Committee, at least once a year. 

 

Independence  

 

The independence of the committee must always be observed in the exercise of its functions in order 

to issue legitimate, objective and credible decisions, as follows: 
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 The Board's acknowledgment of the independence of the Committee and ensuring that it is not 

subjected to any influence that might hinder it from issuing legal and objective decisions when 

deliberating the issues presented to it. 

 Sharia decisions issued by the committee may not be amended or ignored without its approval. 

 The committee must obtain accurate and complete information from the senior management, 

and the committee has the right to request additional information from the senior management 

in the event of insufficient information provided. 

 In the event that the Committee is not provided with the required information, the Board shall be 

notified of the matter, and the Board shall take the appropriate action to rectify the situation. 

 

Confidentiality of the information 

 

 Committee members are obligated to maintain the confidentiality of the internal information they 

obtained while performing their work and not to misuse it. Confidential or sensitive information 

obtained by any member of the Committee during the performance of his work may not be used 

in any way that may harm the company. 

 Without prejudice to the above, the committee's disclosure of information to SAMA for the 

purpose of informing it of the company committing violations of the provisions and principles of 

Sharia is not a violation of the principle of confidentiality of information. 

 

Remuneration of Sharia Committee 

 

Each member of the Committee is entitled to the below compensation: 

 An attendance allowance for each meeting attended by the Committee member and an annual 

remuneration paid in line with the company's corporate governance, remuneration policy, and 

annual performance evaluation. 

 Committee members who are resident outside Riyadh are entitled to all out of pocket expenses 

incurred by them to attend the meeting. Such expenses include a first class ticket (back and forth) 

from his place of residence to the Company’s head office or to the place where the meeting is held 

as well as any accommodation and transportation expenses incurred by them.  

 Board of Directors reports presented to the General Assembly will disclose the remunerations and 

other payments made to the Committee members. 
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4.  SECTION FOUR: RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS 

4.1 GENERAL RIGHTS 

General provisions 
 
A Shareholder should be entitled to all rights attached to their shares, in particular, the right to a share 
of the distributable profits, the right to a share of the company’s assets upon liquidation; the right to 
attend the General Assembly and participate in deliberations and vote on relevant decisions; the right 
of disposition with respect to shares; the right to supervise the Board of Directors activities, and file 
responsibility claims against board members; the right to inquire and have access to information 
without prejudice to the company’s interests and in a manner that does not contradict the Capital 
Market Law and the Implementing Rules. 
As per CMA’s Corporate Governance Regulations, the Company in its Bylaws should specify the 
procedures and precautions that are necessary for the shareholders’ exercise of all their lawful rights. 

 

Fair Treatment of Shareholders  

 
a. The Board is obliged to seek shareholders' rights protection to ensure fairness and equality among 

them.  
b. The Board and the Executive Management of the Company is obliged not to discriminate among 

shareholders who own the same class of shares nor prevent them from accessing any of their 
rights.  

c. The Company shall specify in its internal policies the procedures that are necessary to guarantee 
that all shareholders exercise their rights.  

 

Rights related to shares  

 
All rights related to shares shall be guaranteed to the shareholder, and particularly the following:  

 

a. to obtain his/her portion of the net profits which are to be distributed in cash or through the 
issuance of shares;  

b. to obtain his/her share of the Company’s assets upon liquidation;  
c. to attend the General or Special Shareholders Assemblies, take part in their deliberations and vote 

on their decisions;  
d. to dispose of his/her shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law, The Capital 

Market Law and their implementing regulations;  
e. to enquire and request viewing the books and documents of the Company, including the data and 

information related to the activities of the Company and its operational and investment strategy 
without prejudice to the interests of the Company or breach of the Companies Law and the Capital 
Market Law and their implementing regulations;  

f. to monitor the performance of the Company and the activities of the Board;  
g. to hold Board members accountable, to file liability lawsuits against them and appeal for 

nullification of the resolutions of the General and Special Shareholders Assemblies in accordance 
with the conditions and restrictions provided in the Companies Law and the bylaws of the 
Company;  

h. preemptive rights to subscribe for new shares issued in exchange for cash unless otherwise 
specified in the Company’s bylaws or when the Extraordinary General Assembly suspends the pre-
emptive rights are per Article (140) of the Company's Law.  

i. to record his/her name in the Company’s shareholders register;  
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j. to request to view a copy of the Company’s articles of association and bylaws unless the Company 
publishes them on its website;  

 

Shareholder access to information  

 
a. The Board shall make available to the shareholder complete, clear, accurate and non-misleading 

information to enable him/her to properly exercise his/her rights. Such information shall be 
provided at the proper times and shall be updated regularly. 

b. The method used to provide information to the shareholders shall be clear and detailed and shall 
include a list of the Company's information that the shareholders may obtain. This information 
shall be made available to all shareholders of the same class.  

c. The Company shall use the most effective methods in communicating with shareholders and shall 
not discriminate among shareholders in respect of providing information.  
 

Communicating with Shareholders  

 
a. The Board shall ensure communication between the Company and the shareholders based on the 

common understanding of the strategic objectives and interests of the Company.  
b. The chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer shall inform the remaining Board 

members of the opinions of the shareholders and discuss these opinions with them.  
c. No shareholder may intervene in the operations of the Board or the work of the Executive 

Management of the Company unless he/she is a member of its Board or its management team; or 
unless his/her intervention is through the Ordinary General Assembly according to its powers or 
within the limits and situations permitted by the Board.  

 

Electing the Board Members  

 
a. Upon calling for the General Assembly, the Company shall announce on the Exchange's website 

information about the nominees for the membership of the Board which shall include the 
nominees' experience, qualifications, skills and their previous and current jobs and memberships. 
The Company shall make a copy of the mentioned information available in the Company's head 
office and its website.  

b. Cumulative voting shall be used in electing the Board, in which it is not allowed to use the voting 
right of a single share more than once.  

c. Voting in the General Assembly shall be confined to the Board nominees whose information has 
been announced as per paragraph (a).  

 

Distribution of Dividends 

 

a. The Company’s bylaws shall prescribe the percentage of the net profits to be distributed to the 
shareholders after setting aside the statutory reserve and other reserves.  

b. The Board shall establish a clear policy for the distribution of dividends to achieve the interests of 
the shareholders and the Company as per the Company's bylaw.  

c. The declaration and distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Company's bylaws. 
d. Shareholders should be informed of that policy during the General Assembly and reference 

thereto should be made in the report of the Board of Directors. 
e. The General Assembly may approve the dividends proposed by the Board and the date of 

distribution.  
f. These dividends, whether they be in cash or bonus shares should be given, as of right, to the 

shareholders who are listed in the records kept at the Securities Depository Center as they appear 
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at the end of trading session on the day on which the General Assembly is convened. 

4.2 RIGHTS RELATED TO THE MEETING OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

General Shareholders Assemblies of the Company are competent in all of its affairs. A duly-constituted 
General Assembly represents all shareholders in exercising their powers in respect of the Company. 
The General Assembly shall exercise its role in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law 
and Its Implementing Regulations and the Company's bylaws. 

 

Authority 

 

The following issues fall within the authority of the General Assembly and should be decided upon by 

a majority vote of shareholders participating in General Assembly: 

a. The election and dismissal of Board members; 
b. The ratification of election & dismissal of AC members based on General Assembly; 
c. The approval of the remuneration for Board members; 
d. Upon recommendation of the Board of Directors, issue rules for appointing the members of the 

Audit Committee and define the term of their office and the procedure to be followed by the 
Committee. 

e. The delegation of the authority of the Director to a manager not a member of the Board; 
f. The approval of the annual reports, annual financial statements, including balance sheet, profit 

and loss statements, statement of cash-flows, and notes to the financial statements, as well as the 
distribution of profits and losses based on the results of the fiscal year; 

g. The declaration and payment of dividends based on the results of the fiscal year; 
h. Predetermined approval by the GA for interim dividends for next year based upon meeting 

targets; 
i. The election of the External Auditors and approval of their fees; 
j. Approval of procedures for conducting the General Assembly; 
k. The approval of the reimbursement of extraordinary or unusual items; 
l. The approval of extraordinary transactions that are subject to the approval of the Board of 

Directors in cases where the Board failed to unanimously approve the transaction and transferred 
the authority for its approval to the General Assembly; 

m. Requesting an extraordinary inspection of the financial and economic activities of the Company. 
n. Any other issue stipulated by law or the Bylaws. 
o. Approval of related party transactions. 
p. Formation of an Audit Committee, including the charter for the Audit Committee. 
 

Announcement of General Assembly  
 

In line with Article 13 of the CMA Corporate Governance Regulations the date, place and agenda of 

the General Assembly shall be announced at least 21 days prior to the date thereof; the invitation shall 

be published on the website of the Exchange, the Company's website and in a daily newspaper 

distributed in the province where the Company's head office is located. The Company may invite the 

General and Special Shareholders' Assemblies to convene using methods of contemporary 

technologies. 

 

The Ordinary or Annual General Assembly 

 

This is the General Assembly of shareholders that is held on an annual basis. It is called the “Ordinary” 

General Assembly or the “Annual” General Assembly. In this General Assembly, the shareholders 
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review the Board’s annual report and discuss the Annual Financial Statements. Once the Financial 

Statements are approved and the dividend, if any has been declared, the General Assembly may 

choose to discharge the directors, the Board Committee members and the external auditors. In 

addition, it may also decide if necessary, whether the members of the Board and the external auditors 

are appointed or reappointed. Other points may also be included in the agenda for discussion or 

approval. 

 

The Extraordinary General Assembly 

 

An Extraordinary General Assembly must be called by the Board when the Board wishes to ask the 

Company’s shareholders to approve decisions when the Company must ask its shareholders to 

approve decisions related to 
a. Amending the Company’s bylaws, except for amendments which are deemed null and void 

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Law; 
b. Increasing the Company’s share capital in accordance with the situations provided by the 

Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations; 
c. Decreasing the Company’s share capital if it exceeds the Company’s needs or in the event the 

Company incurs financial losses, in accordance with the situations provided by the Companies Law 
and Its Implementing Regulations; 

d. Resolving to form a consensual reserve for the Company as provided for in its bylaws to be set 
aside for a specific purpose, and the disposal thereof; 

e. Resolving to maintain or liquidate the Company before the end of the term specified in its bylaws; 
f. Approving the Company's shares buy-back; 
g. Issuing preferred shares or approving their buying, or converting ordinary shares into preferred 

shares or converting preferred shares into ordinary shares as per the Company's bylaws and the 
Regulatory Rules and Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law related to Listed Joint 
Stock Companies; 

h. Issuing debt instruments or financing deeds convertible into shares, and stating the maximum 
number of shares that may be issued against these instruments or deeds; 

i. Allocate Shares that are issued upon the capital increase or part of them for the employees of the 
Company, and its affiliates or some of them, or any of them; and 

j. Suspending preemptive rights of shareholders in subscribing for the capital increase in exchange 
for cash or giving priority to non-shareholders in cases as deemed in the interest of the Company 
if so is provided for in the Company’s bylaws. 

 

Shareholders' Assembly 

 
a. The General Assembly of Shareholders is the supreme corporate body of the Company. The 

General Assembly of Shareholders is a special event for shareholders. It provides them with an 
opportunity to participate directly in decision-making by voting on proposed resolutions, 
regardless of the number of the Company shares they own. The Company is aware of how 
important the General Assembly of Shareholders is and encourages all of its shareholders to fully 
exercise their rights at its Assembly through exercising the voting rights. 

b. The General Assembly holds an annual meeting every year. This meeting is called the Annual 
Meeting of the General Assembly. The Annual General Assembly gives the Board of Directors the 
opportunity to discharge their duties regarding matters that need to be decided at the General 
Assembly level by law or by the Bylaws, or place matters before the General Assembly for its 
decision. 

 The Annual Meeting of General Assembly must be held annually and at least within the six months 

following the end of the Company’s financial year; upon the request of the Board of Directors. 



 

 

Page 77 of 90 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL 

Version 10.0 – Dec/2021 

 All Meetings of the General Assembly other than the Annual Meeting of General Assembly should 

be held as Extraordinary Meeting of the General Assembly. 

 The date, place and agenda of the General Assembly shall be announced at least 21 days prior to 

the date thereof; the invitation shall be published on the website of the Exchange, the Company's 

website and in a daily newspaper distributed in the province where the Company's head office is 

located. The Company may invite the General and Special Shareholders' Assemblies to convene 

using methods of contemporary technologies. 

 Nayifat will make arrangements to facilitate the participation of the greatest number of 

shareholders, including, inter alia, determination of the appropriate time and place of the 

meeting. The Company should provide the shareholders the opportunity to vote in the General 

Assembly and should inform the shareholders about the rules governing the meetings and voting 

procedures. 

 The General Assembly should convene upon a request of the Board of Directors. The Board should 

invite a General Assembly to convene pursuant to a request of the external auditors or the Audit 

Committee or a number of shareholders whose shareholdings represent at least 5% of the equity 

share capital. The external auditor may invite the assembly to convene if the Board does not invite 

the assembly within thirty days from the date of the external auditor’s request. 

 In preparing the Annual Meeting of the General Assembly’s agenda, the Board of Directors should 

take into consideration matters General Assembly require to be listed in that agenda; 

shareholders holding not less than 5% of the company’s shares are entitled to add one or more 

items to the agenda upon its preparation. 

 Shareholders should be entitled to discuss matters listed in the agenda of the General Assembly 

and raise relevant questions to the board members and to the external auditors, whether these 

are covered in the agenda or not. The Board of Directors or the external auditors should answer 

the questions raised by shareholders in a manner that does not prejudice the company’s interest. 

 Matters presented to the General Assembly should be accompanied by sufficient information to 

enable shareholders to make decisions. 

 Shareholders should be enabled to peruse the minutes of the General Assembly; the company 

should provide the regulators with a copy of those minutes within 10 days of the convening date 

of any such meeting. 

Participating in the General Assembly of Shareholders 

 Shareholders can participate in the General Assembly either by participating in person or through 

proxy. 

 Participating in person; In order to attend an Assembly in person, the shareholder must hold 

shares of the Company which must be registered in the Register of Shareholders on the date the 

company issues the notice of the meeting. 

 Participating through Proxy a shareholder may participate and vote in the General Assembly 

through proxy, i.e. having another person attend and vote on the shareholder's behalf. In order 

to attend by proxy, the shareholder needs to issue a proxy to another shareholder or any person, 

other than a board member, member of management, or an employee of the Company. A single 

proxy holder cannot hold proxies for more than 5% of the Company’s shares unless they are 

holding proxy for a group of related companies or one family or its members. 

 The name of the person attending and identification / passport number must be written on the 

proxy form and the proxy must contain information specifying the meeting the proxy-holder will 

attend on behalf of the shareholder. 

 A shareholder may indicate his voting instructions on the proxy form. He may indicate whom he 

wants to vote for, against or to abstain from each agenda item which will be voted on during the 

Assembly. 
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 If the shareholder does not fill out the boxes provided to indicate his preference and send in a 

blank proxy form, the Company will consider as if no vote has been cast by that shareholder. 

Submission of Information to Shareholders 

 The following information and documents should be made available to shareholders prior to the 

Annual General Assembly Meeting: 
a. The report of the Board of Directors to shareholders; 
b. The annual financial statements, including the balance sheet, profit and loss statement, 

statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements; 

c. The report of the External Auditors; 
d. Information on proposed candidates for the position of the Director; 
e. The draft of amendments to the Charter, if any; 
f. The draft of the new version of the Charter, if any; 
g. Drafts of any internal documents of the Company if same have been submitted for approval 

from the General Assembly; 

h. The annual report; 
i. The recommendations of the Board on the distribution of profits, including the amount of 

dividends and the procedure for their payment, and on the distribution of losses of the 
Company based on the results of the fiscal year; 

j. Remuneration of the Board members 
k. Information regarding the position of the Board of Directors and any dissenting opinions of 

directors on each agenda item; and 
l. Any other information required by the Law, CMA, SAMA and internal documents of the 

Company. 

 If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes the election of the Board of 

Directors and the Audit Committee members, individual Director and the approval of the External 

Auditors, information as to the existence of the written consent of the candidates should also be 

provided to shareholders. 

 If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes items that can trigger redemption 

rights, the following information and documents should be made available for shareholders during 

the preparation for the General Assembly: 
a. The report of the Independent Appraiser on the market value of shares of the Company, the 

redemption of which can be requested; 

b. Information regarding the value of the net assets of the Company; and 
c. The minutes (or an excerpt from the minutes) of the Board of Directors’ meeting that 

determined the redemption price for shares and indicated that redemption price. 

 If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes the reorganization of the 

Company, the following information and documents should be made available for shareholders 

during the preparation for the Annual General Assembly Meeting 
a. The basis or grounds for the terms and procedures of the reorganization that is contained in 

the decision on the consolidation, merger, split-up, divestiture, or transformation, or in the 
contract on merger or consolidation that is approved by the relevant Board; 

b. The annual reports and the financial statements of all companies involved in the 
reorganization for the last three fiscal years, or for all completed fiscal years if the Company 
was established less than three years ago; and 

c. The year-to-date financial statements up to the quarter that precedes the date of the General 
Assembly. 

 Information and materials that will be submitted to the persons entitled to participate in Annual 

General Assembly Meeting will also be made available at the headquarters of the Company to 

facilitate access to and familiarization of the same. Shareholders also reserve the right, having 
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provided prior written notice, to inspect the books and constitutional documents of the Company 

at the head office. 

 If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly includes the election of members to the Board of 

Directors or the proposed External Auditors of the Company, the candidates should be present 

when the General Assembly discusses this issue with the exception of the external auditors when 

their election is being discussed. 

Submission of Information to CMA 

The Company shall announce to the public the results of a General Assembly meeting immediately 

following its conclusion and shall grant the shareholders an access to the minutes of the General 

Assembly meeting; and the Company shall provide the Authority with a copy of such minutes within 

(10) days of the date of any such meeting. 

In line with Paragraph (a) of Article 8 CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, upon calling for the 

General Assembly, the Company shall announce on the Exchange’s Website information about the 

nominees for the membership of the Board. 

In accordance with Article 68 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, the Company shall publish 

the nomination announcement on the websites of the Company and the Exchange to invite persons 

wishing to be nominated to the membership of the Board. 
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5.  SECTION FIVE: CODE OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS CONDUCT 

5.1 Honesty and Integrity 

The success of the Company's business is dependent on the honesty, integrity and confidence earned 

from its employees, customers, and shareholders. The Company gains credibility by adhering to its 

commitments, displaying honesty and integrity and achieving company goals solely through honorable 

conduct. The Company shall lead by example and will ultimately be judged on its actions. 

Employees should ask whether particular actions will build trust and credibility for the Company and 

whether such action will help create a working environment in which the Company can succeed over 

the long term. The Board Members, Senior Managers, and employees shall strive to build a reputation 

for the Company of honor and integrity. 

The General Assembly of Shareholders shall be notified of any transactions with any related company 

in which a Board Member, committee member, or Senior Manager has any interest. The disclosure to 

the General Assembly shall be accompanied by a report from an external auditor regarding the conflict 

of interest. 

In addition, the Chairman shall provide the General Assembly of Shareholders with details of contracts 

in which Board Members or Senior Management or their Related Parties have an interest, including 

the line of business, size and losses (if any). 

5.2 Disclosure Policy 

The Company shall not announce any anticipated actions that require SAMA’s prior approval or non-

objection, before obtaining the actual approval or non- objection, taking in consideration all related 

laws and regulations. 

Any disclosure to the public and the regulatory authorities shall be clear, fair, and not misleading. The 

Company is under obligation to ensure that it promptly discloses to the public and the regulatory 

authorities any material developments which are not public knowledge and which may have an effect 

on the assets and liabilities or financial position or on the general course of business of the Company 

or its subsidiaries, which lead to movements in the price of its shares, or significantly affects the 

Company's ability to meet its commitments in respect of debt instruments. 

In determining whether a development is material, the Company shall assess whether any investor 

would likely take into consideration the development when making investment decisions regarding 

the Company's shares. 

The Company will make certain that all disclosures made in financial reports and public documents 

are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable. This obligation applies to all employees with any 

responsibility for the preparation for such reports, including drafting; reviewing and signing or 

certifying the information contained therein, as well as to Senior Management and Board and 

Committee members. There is no excuse for misrepresenting facts or falsifying records, which shall 

not be tolerated for any reason whatsoever. 

Employees should inform Senior Management and the Compliance and Audit departments if they 

learn that any information in any filing or public communication was untrue or misleading at the time 

it was made or if subsequent information would affect a similar future filing or public communication. 

The Company will also not selectively disclose (whether in one-on-one or small discussions, meetings, 

presentations, proposals or otherwise) any material non- public information with respect to the 

Company, its securities, business operations, plans, financial condition, results of operations or any 
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development plan. The Company shall be particularly vigilant when making presentations or proposals 

to customers to ensure that our presentations do not contain material non-public information. 

All communications shall be made in compliance with SAMA's Regulations and the CMA's Disclosure 

Rules, the Listing Rules, and other relevant laws. 

The Company ensures that all announcements are required to be prepared and endorsed by the 

Management and approved by Executive Committee Chairman (EC). 

5.3 Accountability 

The Board, its committees, Senior Management and Employees are responsible for knowing and 

adhering to the values and standards set forth in this Code of Ethics and the Corporate Governance 

Manual, and for raising questions if they are uncertain about Company policy. The Senior 

Management shall be accountable to the Board while the Board shall be accountable to the Company's 

Shareholders and SAMA. 

The Company takes the standards set forth in the Code seriously, and violations are cause for 

disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment or removal from the Board or its 

committees. Concerns whether the Company's standards are being met or awareness of violations of 

the Code of Corporate 

Governance Manual must be raised to the Compliance and Internal Audit department or the Audit 

Committee. 

5.4 Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

The Company’s commitment to integrity begins with complying with laws, rules and regulations in the 

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Directors, executives and employees must have an understanding of the 

company policies, laws, rules and regulations that apply to their specific roles. In the event of 

uncertainty whether a contemplated action is permitted by law or the Company's policy, advice and 

guidance should be sought from the Legal and Compliance departments. The Board, Senior 

Management, and employees are responsible for preventing violations of law and for speaking up if 

they discover or know of any possible violations. 

The Company shall comply with all laws, regulations, directives, and instructions issued by SAMA, the 

CMA, and any other regulations applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including the Corporate 

Governance Regulation, the Listing Rules, and the Companies Regulations among others. 

5.5 Confidential and Proprietary Information 

Integral to the Company’s business success is our protection of confidential Company information, as 

well as non-public information entrusted to us by employees, customers and other business partners. 

Confidential and proprietary information includes such things as pricing and financial data, customer 

names/addresses, and financial information and/or non-public information about other companies, 

including current or potential supplier and vendors. The Company will not disclose confidential and 

non-public information without a valid business purpose and proper authorization. 

It is equally important that the Company respects the property rights of others. The Company will not 

acquire or seek to acquire improper means of a competitor’s trade secrets or other proprietary or 

confidential information. The Company will not engage in unauthorized use, copying, distribution or 

alteration of software or other intellectual property. 
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5.6 Protection of Company's Assets 

Company resources, including time, material, equipment and information, are provided exclusively for 

business only. Board Members, Senior Managers, Employees and those who represent the Company 

are trusted to behave responsibly and use good judgment to conserve company resources. Managers 

are responsible for the resources assigned to their departments and are empowered to resolve issues 

concerning their proper use. 

Generally, Company equipment such as computers, copiers and fax machines shall not be used in the 

conduct of an outside business or in support of any religious, political or other outside daily activity, 

except for company-requested support to non-profit organizations or other functions approved by the 

management. Solicitation of contributions or distribution of non-work related materials during work 

hours is prohibited. 

In order to protect the interests and assets of the Company and our employees, the Company reserves 

the right to monitor or review all data and information contained on an employee’s company-issued 

computer or electronic device, the use of the Internet or the Company’s intranet. We will not tolerate 

the use of company resources to create, access, store, print, solicit or send any materials that are 

harassing, threatening, abusive, sexually explicit or otherwise offensive or inappropriate. 

5.7 Fair Dealing 

Members of the Board and its committees, Senior Managers, and employees shall deal fairly with the 

Company's customers, suppliers, competitors, independent auditors, Shareholders, and one another 

and shall not take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged 

information, misrepresentation of material facts, or any other unfair dealing or practice. 

The work environment shall be an environment where everyone is treated with dignity and respect. 

The Company is committed to creating such an environment to bring out the full potential of each 

person, which, in turn, contributes directly to its business success. 

The Company is an equal employment employer and is committed to providing a workplace that is 

free of discrimination of all types from abusive, offensive or harassing behavior. Any employee who 

feels harassed or discriminated against should report the incident to his or her manager, human 

resources, or the Audit department. 

5.8 Guidelines of Ethical Conduct 

At times, Senior Management and employees may be faced with decisions they would rather not have 

to make and issues they would prefer to avoid. Senior Management and employees of the Company 

must exercise all reasonable care in taking decisions with the confidence that the Company is 

committed to acting in an ethical and fair manner at all times. In doing so, this may require the 

Company to comply with more than the minimum requirements of the law. 

While the Company's guidelines of ethical conduct cannot address every issue or provide answers to 

every situation, it can define the spirit in which the Company intends to do business and will act as 

guidance on day-to-day affairs. 

Senior Management has the added responsibility for demonstrating, through their actions, the 

importance of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. Ethical behavior is the product of clear and 

direct communication of behavioral expectations set by the management as an example. 

Senior Management must be responsible for promptly addressing ethical questions or concerns raised 

by employees and for taking the appropriate steps to deal with such issues. Managers should not 
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consider employees’ ethics concerns as threats or challenges to their authority, but rather as another 

encouraged form of business communication. 

5.9 Policy for Confidential Reporting (Whistle Blowing Policy) 

Every employee is a principal resource for the Company to detect and prevent any unethical or 

unlawful business practices by any employee(s), customer(s) or others. Such practices must be 

communicated to the senior management. Concealment, avoidance and showing nonchalant attitude 

towards any misconduct, unethical and or unlawful business practice or activity, which an employee 

may notice and understand, will complicate the problem and may cause increased pecuniary and 

reputational damage to the Company. Hence the Company expects the employees to raise their 

concerns if appropriate, to their superiors or senior management. 

The Company has the policy for all shareholders to raise ethical concerns, evidence of misconduct, or 

violations in a confidential manner and without the fear of retribution. Concerns may include internal 

accounting controls and questionable accounting matters. A staff member may raise any of their 

concerns, suspicions or any other claims of violations, which might jeopardize the interests of the 

Company, by referring to the Company’s Whistle blower policy. 

5.10 Conflicts of Interest 

Dealing with Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties Transactions 
 
Without prejudice to the provisions of the Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations, conflicts 
of interest situations and Related Parties transactions shall be dealt with in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 6 of the CMA Corporate Governance Regulations. 

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

The Board shall develop an explicit and written policy to deal with actual and potential conflicts of 
interest situations which may affect the performance of Board members, the Executive Management 
or any other employees of the Company when dealing with the Company or other Stakeholders. This 
policy shall include the following in particular: 
 
1) informing Board members, Substantial Shareholders, Senior Executives and other employees of the 
Company of the importance of avoiding situations that may lead to a conflict between their interests 
and the interests of the Company, and dealing with them in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations. 
2) Providing examples of conflicts of interest situations that are relevant to the nature of the 
Company’s activity. 
3) Clear procedures for disclosing conflicts of interest in the activities that may lead to such conflicts 
and obtaining authorization or the requisite approval. 
4) The obligation to constantly disclose situations that may lead to conflicts of interest or upon the 
occurrence of such conflicts. 
5) The obligation to abstain from voting or taking part in decision making when there is conflicts of 
interest. 
6) Clear procedures when the Company contracts or enters into a transaction with a Related Party, 
this shall include notifying the Authority and the public without any delay of that contract or 
transaction if it equals to or exceeds 1% of the Company's total revenues according to the last annual 
audited financial statements. 
7) Procedures to be taken by the Board when discovering that such policy is violated. 
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Avoiding Conflicts of Interest 
 
a) A member of the Board shall: 
1) perform his/her duties with honesty and integrity, and prioritize the interests of the Company over 
his/her own interest, and not use his/her position to achieve personal interests; 
2) Avoid situations of conflicts of interest and notify the Board of situations of conflict which may 
affect his/her neutrality when looking into matters presented before the Board. The Board shall not 
allow such member to be involved in deliberations and shall not count his/her vote when voting on 
such matters in the Board and the Shareholders Assemblies meetings; and 
3) Protect the confidentiality of the information related to the Company and its activities, and not 
disclose any of such information to any person. 
 
b) Each Board member is prohibited from: 
1) Voting on a decision taken by the Board or the General Assembly with respect to transactions and 
contracts that are executed for the Company's account, if he/she has a direct or indirect interest 
therein. 
2) Misusing or benefitting, directly or indirectly, from any of the Company’s assets, information or 
investment opportunities presented to the Company or to him in his/her capacity as a member of the 
Board. This includes investment opportunities which are within the activities of the Company, or which 
the Company wishes to make use of. Such prohibition shall extend to Board member who resigns to, 
directly or indirectly, use investment opportunities that the Company wishes to use, which came to 
his/her knowledge during his/her membership in the Board. 
 
Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest by the Nominee 
 
A person who desires to nominate himself/herself for the membership of the Board shall disclose to 
the Board or the General Assembly any cases of conflicts of interest, including: 
1) having direct or indirect interest in the contracts and businesses entered into for the benefit of the 
Company in which he/she desires to be nominated to the Board. 
2) Engaging in business that may compete with the Company or any of its activities. 
 
Criteria of Competing with the Company 
 
Without prejudice to Articles (71) and (72) of the Companies Law, if a member of the Board desires to 
engage in a business that may compete with the Company or any of its activities, the following shall 
be taken into account: 
1) Notifying the Board of the competing businesses he/she desires to engage in and recording such 
notification in the minutes of the Board meeting. 
2) The conflicted member shall abstain from voting on the related decision in the Board meeting and 
General Assemblies.  

3) the chairman of the Board informing the Ordinary General Assembly, once convened, of the 
competing businesses that the member of the Board is engaged in, after the Board assesses the board 
member's competition with the company's business or if he/she is in competition with one of the 
branch activities that it conducts in accordance standards issued by the Ordinary General Assembly 
upon a proposal from the Board and published on the company’s website, provided that such 
businesses are assessed on annual basis.  

4) Obtaining an authorization of the Ordinary General Assembly of the Company for the member to 
engage in the competing business.  
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Concept of the Competing Businesses  
 
The following shall be deemed a participation in any business that may compete with the Company or 
any of its activities:  
1) The Board members’ establishing a company or a sole proprietorship or the ownership of a 
controlling percentage of shares or stakes in a Company or any other entity engages in business 
activities that are similar to the activities of the Company or its group.  

2) Accepting membership in the Board of a company, an entity that competing with the Company or 
its group, or managing the affairs of a competing sole proprietorship or any competing company of 
any form, except the company’s affiliates. 

3) The Board member’s acting as an overt or covert commercial agent for another company or entity 
competing with the Company or its group.  
 
Rejection to Granting Authorization  
 
If the General Assembly rejects granting the authorization pursuant to Articles (72) of the Companies 
Law and Article (46) of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations , the member of the Board shall resign 
within a period specified by the General Assembly; otherwise, his/her membership in the Board shall 
be deemed terminated, unless he/she decides to withdraw from competing the Company or regularize 
his/her situation in accordance with the Companies Law and its Implementing Regulations prior to the 
end of the period set by the General Assembly. 
 
Accepting Gifts  
 
No member of the Board or Senior Executives may accept gifts from any person who has entered into 
commercial transactions with the Company if such acceptance of gifts may lead to conflicts of interest. 
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6.  SECTION SIX: POLICY FOR DEALING WITH MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 

 Minority shareholders are those shareholders who represent a class of shareholders that do 

not control the Company and hence they are unable to influence the Company. 

 The purpose of this policy is to assure there is effective protection for the rights and interests 

of all categories of shareholders as well as to prevent any conflict of interests. The policy is 

intended to monitor the interests of the shareholders and the pursuit of dialogue with respect 

to corporate governance and ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders. 

6.1 Responsibilities 

 The Board of Directors should examine issues coming from minority shareholders; explain the 

norms of shareholder rights; carry out the role of a go-between in disputes between parties 

to a corporate conflict. 

 The Board should supervise the implementation of Nayifat's executive authorities of its 

information policy when dealing with the issue of control of accessibility by minority 

shareholders to channels via which information is disclosed. The Board of Directors should 

draft recommendations on improving the communication activity, openness and 

transparency, equality of rights for all shareholders and for the timely receipt of the required 

information. 

 The Board should carry out a preliminary examination of all drafts of substantive corporate 

actions, with respect to protecting the rights of minority shareholders and assuring extra 

measures guaranteeing that minority shareholders are provided with the opportunity to 

influence the pursuit of these actions. 

 The Board should carry out a preliminary examination of issues relating to the preparation 

and holding of the meeting of shareholders. It should make recommendations on measures 

that will assure extra guarantees for the exercise of rights of minority shareholders. The Board, 

as represented by the majority of its members, should attend the meetings of shareholders in 

order to carry out a dialogue outside the obligatory rules of procedure of the meeting. 

 The Board should, from the positions of protecting the rights of minority shareholders, carry 

out the analysis of: 

a. Charter and internal documents of the company; 

b. the existing legislation and the best practice of its application; 

c. leading norms of corporate governance; and 

d. Draft laws and decisions of regulating authorities. 

 The results of the analysis carried out should be formalized by reports, conclusions and 

reviews. 
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7. SECTION SEVEN: EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 

The Senior Management is responsible for supervising the day-to-day activities of the Company. 

The CEO has the primary responsibility for executing the strategy set forth by the Board and 
controlled by the EC and is directly responsible to the Chairman and Members of the EC for its 
performance, and the achievement of annual profit, sales and market share goals and targets. He is 
the primary link between the management of the company and the EC and is responsible to ensure 
that the EC is kept adequately informed of the Company’s performance and about short, medium 
and long term challenges faced by the Company. It is the CEO who is responsible for leading an 
effective executive team in order to maximize long term shareholder value by contributing to the 
development of appropriate business strategies and ensuring the effective implementation of those 
strategies. The following is the general responsibilities of the CEO: 

 Implement strategic and tactical plans for the development of the Company and enhancing 
shareholder value; 

 Implement the decisions of the Board and the General Assembly of Shareholders; 
 Implementing the Company’s internal policies and rules approved by the Board; 
 Suggesting the Company’s comprehensive strategy as well as the principal and interim 

business plans and the policies and mechanisms for investment, financing, risk management 
and emergency administrative circumstances management plans and implementing them; 

 Maintain a close liaison with the Chairman of the EC and keep him abreast of strategic matters; 
 Proposing the most appropriate capital structure for the Company and its strategies and 

financial objectives; 
 Proposing the main capital expenditures of the Company and acquiring and disposing of 

assets; 
 Prepare annual budgets for presentation to the EC and the Board of Directors; 
 Review and approve all Project capital expenditure budgets, and commit such budgets, after 

ratification by Board of Directors or EC, in accordance with the Company’s delegations of 
authority manual 

 Co-ordinate the development of the five year strategic plans for the Company on a rolling 
basis, in conjunction with EC. 

 Preparing periodic financial and non-financial reports in respect of the progress achieved in 
the business of the Company in light of the strategic plans and objectives of the Company, and 
presenting such reports to the Board; 

 Proposing the organizational and human resources structures of the company and presenting 
them to the Board for approval; 

 Represent the Company with third parties and regulatory authorities and manage the 
Company’s relations with third parties; 

 Ensure the establishment and compliance with formal company policies, in all areas of 
business for of the Company; 

 Perform the role of an Authorized Person, within the meaning of the Company’s Public 
Communication Policy, in communicating information to the public, including representatives 
of the media. As an authorized person, the CEO may make such a communication in person, 
or authorize another individual to make such a communication; 

 Ensure the development and maintenance of relationships with Key Regulators, Key 
Governmental Organizations, Key Players in the Industry, Commercial Partners; 

 Ensure that all reporting requirements of Regulators are met, and authorize the release of any 
financial or other communication to them and all other regulators or government agencies, if 
any; 

 Lead and motivate the executive team of the Company in the sound management of the 
business; 

 Coordinate the Senior Management activities; 
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a. Promote and develop the company’s operating systems; 

b. Provide clear vision and encouragement to all employees of the Company in achieving its 
strategies; 

c. Review and enhance the Company’s technical skills in all respects; 

d. Support the development of the Company’s business by using leading administrative and 
technical practices; 

e. Communicate a clear vision to Company management of the strategy of the Company; 

f. Manage staff reporting directly to him and maintain a cohesive executive team, with 
appropriate coaching and guidance as required; 

g. Convene and chair Senior Management meetings at least monthly; 

h. Attract and retain a management team of the required caliber to manage the business 
effectively; 

i. Proposing the policy and types of remunerations granted to employees, such as fixed 
remunerations, remunerations linked to performance and remunerations in the form of 
shares; 

j. Monitor monthly performance targets of all departments on a continuous basis and initiate 
corrective action where necessary to ensure targets are met; 

k. Review and recommend all monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports before submitting 
them through the EC for Board approval and sign the approved statements and submit to 
Regulators; 

l. Ensure quick resolution of any disputes or conflicts between departments and/or individuals. 
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8 - SECTION EIGHT: UPDATE CONTROL LOG 

 This Manual will be amended from time to time as the business of Nayifat changes and as the regulation of 
Nayifat develops. 

 The Board of Directors will ensure that this manual is kept up-to-date by arranging for the most recent 
version to be made available on the network. 

 Changes to the Manual should be consecutively numbered and dated. 

 Enter the date of the update next to the update number on each page of the Manual.  

 The log should be used and signed off for all updates 

Policy Name 
Version 
Number 

Date Prepared Reason of Change 

Corporate 
Governance  

1.0 June 2018 CRO Development of Charter 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

2.0 
October 
2018 

CRO Enhanced In line with SAMA Rules Financing 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

3.0 
September 
2018 

CRO 
Enhanced In line with SAMA Rules for Non 
Financing Companies and CMA Corporate 
Governance Regulations 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

4.0 
November 
2018 

CRO 

Major Enhancement in line with SAMA, CMA 
Corporate Governance, CMA Listing Rules: 

 Overall Corporate Governance Section 

 Board of Nayifat Section  

 Board of Nayifat Committee and addition 
of Strategic Committee Section 

 General Assembly Section  

 Code of Conducts and Ethics Section 

 Dealing with Minority Shareholder 
section 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

5.0 June 2019 CRO 

 Updated in line with CMA the amended 
Governance Regulation of May 15TH 
2019; namely;  
o Conflict of Interest Section 
o Competition with the Company 

Section 

 correcting some linguistically and 
grammatical errors  

Correcting cross-references to the Company’s 
Bylaws and other Laws and Regulations 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

6.0 
October 
2019 

CRO/Compliance 
 Updated in line with SAMA & CMA 

regulatory requirements 

 Updated New Board members 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

7.0 
October 
2020 

CRO/Compliance  Annual Update 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

8.0 
February 
2021 

CRO/Compliance 
 Enhancement of Nomination 

&Remuneration  

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

9.0 
September 
2021 

CRO/Compliance  Nayifat Organization Structure 

Corporate 
Governance 
Manual 

10.0 Dec 2021 Board Secretary  
 Updated in line with SAMA & CMA 

regulatory requirements 

 


